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This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardlimg statements which involve risks and unceriaintWords such as "believes",
"expects"”, "anticipates” and the like indicate fardrlooking statements. The Company's actual iesudty differ materially from the results
discussed in the forward- looking statements feagety of reasons, including those set forth ui@sk Factors Affecting the Company's

Business".

PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
OVERVIEW

Intevac, Inc.'s ("Intevac" or the "Company") priméusiness is the design, manufacture and salerplex capital equipment that is used to
manufacture products such as thin-film disks fanpater disk drives and flat panel displays (theuligment Business"). The Company also
develops highly sensitive electro-optical deviceder government sponsored R&D contracts (the "RticgdBusiness”).

The Equipment Business recorded sales of $90.6omilh 1998 and is a leading supplier of sputtesggtems used to manufacture thin-film
disks for computer hard disk drives. Sputtering momplex vacuum deposition process used to depesiiple thinfilm layers on a disk. Th
Equipment Business also realizes revenues fromdles of disk lubrication equipment, contact stigptg"CSS") test equipment, flat panel
display ("FPD") manufacturing equipment and elettbeam processing equipment. Spare parts andsafeiservice are also sold to
purchasers of the Company's equipment, and salengbonents are made to other manufacturers ofiva@gquipment.

The Photonics Business began in 1995 when the Qaytgpaight vision business was sold. The terméefsale permitted Intevac to utilize
the night vision technology for non-competitive guots. The majority of Photonics Business revemuedrom government sponsored R&D
contracts. The Photonics Business has been printinileloping technology that permits highly semsitiletection in the short-wave infrared
spectrum in electron sources with very preciseadtaristics. This development work is aimed attimganew products for both military and
industrial applications and generated sales of 8llin in 1998. The Company expects that prodiates will become a larger percentage of
Photonics Business revenues in 1999 and beyond.

EQUIPMENT BUSINESS PRODUCTS
Disk Sputtering Equipment

The Equipment Business' principal product is theRMEZ50B disk sputtering system. The Company offe@sssystem for list prices ranging
from $2.0 million to $3.5 million, depending upoandiguration, to both captive and merchant thimfillisk manufacturers. The MDP-250 is
used by disk manufacturers to apply thin layersrafercoats, magnetic alloys and protective ovescmethin film disks used in the
manufacture of computer hard disk drives. The MBB-RBas the capability to sputter multi-layers (niplét magnetic layers with interspersed
non-magnetic layers); to sputter onto alternatidgsrates (such as glass and ceramic), as weliraentional aluminum substrates; and to
make media with the appropriate characteristicuga with magneto-resistive ("MR") heads and gmagneto-resistive ("GMR") heads.
Intevac MDP-250 disk sputtering systems are culyeémtoperation at the following customers: FujeEdric, Fujitsu Limited, Hitachi, HMT
Technology, IBM, Komag, MaxMedia, Mitsubishi, Nipp&heet Glass, Seagate Technology, Sony and Ttag8 Technology.

The mechanical design of the MDP-250 has charatiesiwhich are similar to the cluster tools whéck widely used in semiconductor
manufacturing in that each process station is séglgrvacuum pumped and is vacuum isolated duninggssing. The MDP-250 does not
require a carrier or pallet to transport disks tigfo the system. Rather, disks are automaticaligddanto the system from cassettes,
processed, and then automatically returned todksatte. A number of process stations are offa@reldiding multiple options for
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the deposition of thin films, heating stations, laog stations and cleaning stations. Furthermdresé process stations can be moved from an
machine process position to any other to easilpmocodate process changes.

In September 1998 the Company announced that iteasloping a new disk sputtering system, the MBBK2 The MDP-250K disk
sputtering system is derived from its predecesherMDP-250B. Maximum throughput is targeted tdltt80 disks per hour compared to 550
disks per hour for the MDP-250B. Vacuum levels aladsport time have been improved, which should teaeduced contamination and
improved magnetic performance. Leading edge ddpodiéchniques, such as ion beam and RF magnegqoosdion will be fully integrated.
Windows NT based software, a graphical user interéend modern factory host communications are pureted. The MDR250K is expecte

to be available during the third quarter of 1999.

Disk Lubrication Equipment

The Company, through its 1996 acquisition of SaeJboechnology Corp. ("SJT"), is a leading suppifesystems used to lubricate thin-film
disks. The Company's principal lubrication prodsdhe 7G Gravity-Flo Luber. Lubrication is the guztion step that typically follows disk
sputtering in the manufacture of thin-film diskaurihg lubrication, a microscopic layer of lubricastapplied to the disk's surface to improve
durability and reduce surface friction. SJT's paduwallow thin-film disk manufacturers to uniformlybricate disks in a temperature
controlled, low vibration, contamination free emriment with a minimal amount of solvent loss.

Disk Test Equipment

In 1996, the Company acquired Lotus Technologiss, ('Lotus"), a leading manufacturer of CSS tegtigment for hard disk drives and
components. Lotus' family of PC-based CSS testpagent performs precise measurements of disk weetiph, stiction and stargtop torque
related to the interface of the read-write headh wie thin-film disk.

Flat Panel Display Manufacturing Equipment

FPDs are used for a variety of applications sudA@s, workstations and video displays. The manufacif several types of flat panel
displays, such as active matrix liquid crystal thg("AMLCD") and plasma display panel ("PDP") rémps the use of a sputtering process to
deposit thin-film layers of different materials orat glass substrate. The Company believes thakitie and technologies that it has
developed for the thin-film disk manufacturing ity are directly applicable to the FPD manufacigiindustry. These skills and
technologies include its expertise and experien@puttering, rapid heating, high vacuum, isolagtestess chambers and material handlin
addition, as with the thin-film disk manufacturimglustry, the FPD industry involves providing coeplexpensive capital equipment to a
small number of customers worldwide.

In 1992 the Company initiated a program to develgputtering system for this market under an agee¢mith its development partner,
Ebara Corporation ("Ebara"). Under the agreemendnaended, Ebara has agreed to pay one-half detleopment costs of the flat panel
sputtering system in exchange for joint ownersliithe intellectual property rights and the exclesiight to manufacture and sell in Japan
flat panel sputtering systems developed underdheement. The Company has retained the exclugii to manufacture and sell such flat
panel sputtering systems outside of Japan. Ead¢h igarequired to pay royalties to the other pamtyits flat panel sputtering system sales.

In 1997 the Company developed its first flat paspeittering machine ("D-STAR") capable of sputtemytass substrates as large as 550 mm
by 650 mm. In 1998 the Company delivered a scajedeunsion of its DSTAR unit capable of sputtering glass substratdarge as 1.2 mete
by 1.6 meters ("RIGEL") optimized for the productiof PDPs.

Additionally, in 1994 the Company initiated a prtj¢o develop a rapid thermal processing ("RTP%tem to be used in the manufacture of
FPDs. The Company's RTP system can be used tdyapidiify the



characteristics of thin films deposited on gladsstuates. For example, the Company's RTP systembecased to activate thin films after ion
implantation. The Company has delivered four RTSleys to date.

Electron Beam Processing Equipment

The Company acquired its electron beam processjangpment product line in 1997 when it purchasedstatially all the assets and
liabilities of RPC Industries, Inc. ("RPC") of Hagwd, California. The Company's principal electr@aim offering is its line of BroadBeam
processors. Broad Beam processors have historsaltifor prices ranging from $0.6 million to $2xlilion, depending upon configuration,
and are typically used for curing inks, coatingd adhesives, in the manufacture of shrink-wrapdibnd for in-line sterilization. Customers
currently using BroadBeam equipment include Dup®atra Pack, S.D. Warren, International Paper anifl &ates Paper.

PHOTONICS BUSINESS TECHNOLOGY AND PRODUCTS

The Photonics Business is developing technologypéamits highly sensitive detection in the shoawe infrared spectrum in electron
sources with very precise characteristics. Theseoplics development efforts are funded primariljfwgovernment sponsored R&D
contracts. This development work is aimed at cngatiew products for both military and industriapbgations.

In 1998 the Photonics division demonstrated theofigsdectron bombarded charge coupled devices ('EBE) as the detector in a new
camera operating with high sensitivity in the imé@ ("IR") portion of the spectrum. EBCCDs providgh sensitivity detection and high-
resolution imagery in the visible and short wavieared spectrum. This camera has been combinedaniker illuminator to enable a new
type of system that achieves recognition of myiti@argets at ranges of several kilometers. Thisrtepie, termed laser illuminated viewing
and ranging ("LIVAR"), is expected to be incorp@@into several military programs, and contractsiaplace to develop equipment for
three applications.

Development is also being done on negative electfiomty ("NEA") electron sources. NEA electronwsoes provide an enabling technology
to be used in semiconductor test and photolithdgragguipment, which may permit a significant reducin the feature size of integrated
circuits.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The industries that the Company markets its pradiacare generally characterized by rapid techncddghange and evolving industry
standards. As a result, the Company routinely itsvesbstantial amounts in research and developamehéxpects to continue an active
development program. The Company's research arelafeuent expenses were $12.7 million, $10.7 mildod $8.4 million, respectively, in
1998, 1997 and 1996. Research and development sapespresented 13.3%, 8.0% and 9.5%, respectofaigt revenues in 1998, 1997 and
1996. Research and development expenses do nadécbsts of $1.8 million, $1.3 million and $1.3lion that were incurred by the
Company in 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively, ame:weimbursed under the terms of cost sharingeaggats.

SALES CHANNEL, CUSTOMERS AND MARKETING

The selling process for the Company's equipmerdynts is often a multi-level and long-term proces®lving individuals from marketing,
engineering, operations, customer service and seraoagement. The process is lengthy and invohadsng samples for the prospective
customer and responding to individual needs forenat levels of machine customization. Installing ategrating new equipment require
substantial investment by a customer. Sales o€thrapany's systems depend, in significant part, aperecision of a prospective customer
to replace obsolete equipment or to increase matufag capacity by upgrading or expanding existimgnufacturing facilities or
constructing new manufacturing facilities, all dfieh typically involve a significant capital commmient. Therefore, customers often requi
significant number of product presentations andatesirations before making a purchasing decisiooAdingly, the Company's systems
typically have a lengthy sales cycle, during which Company may expend substantial funds and mareagdime and effort with no
assurance that a sale will result.



The Company sells and markets its disk manufagysioducts directly in the United States, and thtoexclusive distributors in Japan
(Matsubo) and Korea (Chung Song). During 1997 thm@any established a joint venture in Japan wittshizo, Intevac Matsubo Advanced
Technology (IMAT Inc.), to market its flat panekgiay products in the Far East. Electron beam grieg equipment is marketed directly by
the Company and by distributors in Europe. The Camalso services its customers in Southeast Asiugih a wholly owned subsidiary in
Singapore and a branch office in Taiwan.

Historically, a significant portion of the Compasiyevenues in any particular period have beerbattible to sales to a limited number of
customers. For example, Matsubo, HMT TechnologyMMC Technology each accounted for more than 10%h®fCompany's total net
revenues in 1998 and Matsubo, HMT Technology amté Storage Technology each accounted for morelibfgnof the Company's total 1
revenues in 1997. Matsubo, Seagate and HMT Techp@ach accounted for more than 10% of the Compdotal net revenues in 1996.

The Company's largest customers change from pagipdriod as large fabrication facilities are coetel and new projects are initiated. The
Company expects that sales of its products toivelgtfew customers will continue to account fonigh percentage of its net revenues in the
foreseeable future. As purchases related to acptatinew or expanded fabrication facility are céeigd, sales to that customer may decrease
sharply or cease altogether.

Foreign sales accounted for 53% of revenues in, 189% in 1997 and 41% in 1996. The majority of @@npany's foreign sales are to
companies in the Far East and the Company antésghtt sales to customers in the Far East wiliimoa to be a significant portion of its
revenues.

CUSTOMER SUPPORT

The Company provides process and applications styppustomer training, installation, start-up assise and emergency service support to
its customers. Process and applications suppprbidded by the Company's equipment process ssteiho also visit customers at their
plants to assist in process development projetts.dompany conducts training classes for procésatigts, machine operators and machine
service personnel. Additional training is also giviring the machine installation. Installation atart up support is generally provided
within the United States by the Intevac customevise organization. This group also assists withitistallation and start up of systems in
overseas locations as required.

The Company generally provides a one-year warrantys equipment. During this warranty period aegessary non-consumable parts are
supplied and installed. Currently, the Companyfled service offices located in the United Sta&sigapore and Taiwan. In addition, ser
in Japan, Malaysia and Korea is provided by the amg's distributor and representatives using p@&edonho have received training at
Intevac. Intevac and its distributors stock condblesmand spare parts to support the installed tlesgstems. These parts are available on a
24-hour per day basis.

MANUFACTURING

The majority of the Company's manufacturing is aandd at its headquarters facility in Santa Cl&@aljfornia, with smaller manufacturing
facilities located in Hayward, California (electrbeaam processing equipment) and Los Gatos, Callifddisk test equipment). The
Company's manufacturing operations include eleataranical assembly, mechanical and vacuum assefabhjgation of the sputter
sources, and system assembly, alignment and te3timgCompany makes extensive use of the infrasireiserving the semiconductor
equipment business. The Company purchases vacumnpspwalves, instrumentation and fittings, poweapdies, printed wiring board
assemblies, computers and control circuitry andotasnechanical parts made by forging, machiningwaelding. The Company has a well-
equipped fabrication center that produces partshant notice for engineering, manufactures a pomibthe fabricated parts used in Intevac
products and sells fabricated parts to commercisiamers.

The Company's manufacturing strategy is to opewvételow fixed costs, to produce high quality, ce$tective systems and low cost
replacement parts and to be able to respond efédgtio changes in volume. To do this, the Compamyently designs its products to use
standard parts where possible. The Company perforamufacturing activities that add value or thguiee unique technology or specialized
knowledge



and, taking advantage of its Silicon Valley locatiatilizes subcontractors to perform other mantufidicg activities.
BACKLOG

The Company's backlog was $26.1 million and $731Bom at December 31, 1998 and December 31, 188pectively. The Company
includes in its backlog only those customer ordersystems, component parts and contract researdhievelopment for which it has
accepted signed purchase orders with assignecedglilates. The equipment requirements of the Coy'panstomers cannot be determined
with accuracy, and therefore the Company's backt@ny certain date may not be indicative of futleenand for the Company's products.

PATENTS AND LICENSING

The Company currently has 25 patents issued iblttited States and 3 patents issued in foreign c@snand has patent applications pen

in the United States and foreign countries. Of2hdJ.S. patents, 8 relate to sputtering, 10 rea®RTP, 1 relates to lubrication systems and 6
relate to photonics. Two foreign patents relatepottering and 1 relates to photonics. In additiba,Company has the right to utilize certain
patents under licensing arrangements with Littatugtries, Varian Associates, Stanford Universigwkence Livermore Laboratories and
Alum Rock Technology.

EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 1998, the Company had 286 employeeading 8 contract employees. 95 of these eyg#s are in research and
development, 114 are in manufacturing, and 77raegliministration, customer support and marketing.

RISK FACTORS AFFECTING THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS
Cyclical Nature of the Disk Drive Industry

The Company has derived a significant proportioitsofiet revenues from sales of its disk sputtesygfems to manufacturers constructing
new thin-film disk fabrication facilities. The cansction of new thin-film disk fabrication facilgs involves extremely large capital
expenditures, resulting in few thin-film disk fatation facilities being constructed worldwide ay garticular time. A substantial investment
is also required by disk manufacturers to instadl antegrate additional thin-film disk manufactiaquipment in connection with upgrading
or expanding their existing fabrication faciliti€these costs are far in excess of the cost of psief the Company's system. The magnitude
of such capital expenditures has caused certairfitm disk manufacturers to forego purchasing gigant additional thin-film disk
manufacturing equipment. Consequently, only a échihumber of opportunities for the Company to iselbystems may exist at any given
time. Therefore, winning or losing an order frony grarticular customer can significantly affect thempany's operating results.

The disk drive industry is cyclical and historigalfias experienced periods of under- and over-sugfghyoduct. Periods of oversupply result
in significantly reduced demand for thin-film disksd for the capital equipment used to manufactuoh disks, including the systems
manufactured and marketed by the Company. Duri®y Bd 1998 a number of manufacturers of harddtisies and a number of their
suppliers reported substantial losses. Many ofetinegnufacturers attributed their problems to aregxsupply of hard drives, or in the cas
component suppliers, an excess supply of compoffienkgrd drives (including thin film disks). Asresult, during the second half of 1998
Company experienced significant reductions in grirtrevenues and incurred net losses in bothhing &and fourth quarters of 1998.

Rapid Technical Change

The Company's ability to remain competitive regaiisabstantial investments in research and develoipim@dvance its technologies. The
failure to develop, manufacture and market newesgst or to enhance
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existing systems, would have a material adverszetin the Company's business, financial condaimh results of operations. In the past, the
Company has experienced delays from time to tintedrintroduction of, and certain technical diffides with, certain of its systems and
enhancements. In addition, the Company's competitan be expected to continue to develop and int®dew and enhanced products, any
of which could cause a decline in market demandhferCompany's systems or a reduction in the Cogipamargins as a result of intensified
price competition.

The Company's success in developing and sellingpent depends upon a variety of factors, includingurate prediction of future
customer requirements, technology advances, castoérship, introduction of new products on schedobst-effective manufacturing and
product performance in the field. The Company's pevduct decisions and development commitments antstipate continuously evolving
industry requirements significantly in advance ags. Any failure to accurately predict customeguieements and to develop new
generations of products to meet those requirenvenitd have a sustained material adverse effech@Cbmpany's business, financial
condition and results of operations. New produagitions could adversely affect sales of exissiygfems, and product introductions could
contribute to quarterly fluctuations in operatimgults as orders for new products commence andsfateexisting products decline. There
can be no assurance that the Company will be ssitt@s selecting, developing, manufacturing andkating new products or enhanceme
of existing products.

For example, changes in the manufacturing procdeseisin-film disks could have a material adveestect on the Company's business,
financial condition and results of operations. Td@npany anticipates continued rapid changes imeyeirements of the disk drive industry
and thin-film disk manufacturing technologies. Tdean be no assurance that the Company will betallevelop, manufacture and sell
systems that respond adequately to such changaddition, the computer disk drive industry is sabjto constantly evolving technological
standards. There can be no assurance that futtimediegical innovations will not reduce demandtfon-film disks. The Company's
business, financial condition and results of openatcould be materially adversely affected by agpd toward technology that would repl
thin-film disks as a storage medium.

Competition

The Company experiences intense competition ifcthgépment Business. For example, the Company'ssgisitering business experiences
competition worldwide from two principal competitoBalzers A.G. ("Balzers") and Anelva Corporatfthnelva"), each of which is a large
manufacturer of complex vacuum equipment and tiin-disk manufacturing systems and has sold a anbiat number of thin-film disk
sputtering machines worldwide. Both Balzers andl¥aéave substantially greater financial, techniosrketing, manufacturing and other
resources than the Company. There can be no assutat the Company's competitors will not devednpancements to, or future
generations of, competitive products that will offeperior price or performance features or that cempetitors will not enter the Compan
markets and develop such enhanced products.

Given the lengthy sales cycle and the significamestment required to integrate equipment intarth@ufacturing process, the Company
believes that once a manufacturer has selectediaypar supplier's equipment for a specific apgiion, that manufacturer generally relies
upon that supplier's equipment and frequently edglitinue to purchase any additional equipmentHat application from the same supplier.
Accordingly, competition for customers in the equgnt industry is intense, and suppliers of equigmeay offer substantial pricing
concessions and incentives to attract new custoareetain existing customers.

International Operations and Foreign Exchange Expogre

Sales and operating activities outside of the Wn8eates are subject to certain inherent riskddieg fluctuations in the value of the United
States dollar relative to foreign currencies, fasifluotas, taxes and other market barriers, paliind economic instability, restrictions on the
export or import of technology, potentially limitéutellectual property protection, difficulties #taffing and managing international operat
and potentially adverse tax consequences. The Quyrgzans a significant portion of its revenue from
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international sales, and these sales have incltidenhstallation of the Company's products in Eeaypcountries and Far Eastern countries
such as Japan, Singapore, Malaysia, Korea, ThaitardiTaiwan. All of the Far Eastern countries withich the Company does business
have banking systems and foreign currencies that bBaperienced serious troubles and therefore stuthie Company's customers to
substantial business risks. There can be no agsuthat any of these factors will not have a matexilverse effect on the Company's
business, financial condition or results of operadi In particular, although the Company's inteama sales have historically been
denominated in United States dollars, such salbsatiall be denominated in dollars in the futused currency exchange fluctuations in
countries where the Company does business coulerialft adversely the Company's business, finarcgabition and results of operations.

The Company's two principal competitors for diskitsgring equipment are based in foreign countrmebslave cost structures based on
foreign currencies. Accordingly, currency fluctweits could cause the Company's products to be mphess, competitive than its
competitors' products. Currency fluctuations wdkcdease, or increase, the Company's cost struetiatése to those of its competitors, which
could impact the Company's gross margins. For el@ndpring 1998 the exchange rate for Japanesdl¥emated between approximately
113 Yen/$ and 147 Yen/$. The Company generallyepiahd sells its products in US dollars. Howewarcértain Japanese customers, the
Company quotes and sells its products in JapaneseThe Company, from time to time, enters int@iigm currency contracts in an effort to
reduce the overall risk of currency fluctuationstte Company's business. However, there can beswamnce that the offer and sale of
products in foreign denominated currencies, anddltaged foreign currency hedging activities witttrmaterially adversely affect the
Company's financial condition and results of opgeret.

Fluctuation in Operating Results

Over the last eight quarters the Company's operaticome or (loss) as a percentage of net revemagfluctuated from approximately (47%)
to 16% of net revenues. The Company anticipatadtthaperating margin will continue to fluctuates a result, the Company believes that
period-to-period comparisons of its results of afiens are not necessarily meaningful and shouldewoelied upon as indications of future
performance.

Diversification and Potential Acquisitions

The Company routinely evaluates acquisition cartd&land other diversification strategies. Therelmano assurance that the Company's
efforts in these areas will be successful. The Gmyompleted one acquisition in 1997 and threeiaitipns in 1996. Any future acquisiti
may result in potentially dilutive issuance of aggecurities, the write-off of in-process reseagiod development and the assumption of debt
and contingent liabilities, any of which could mé#y adversely affect the Company's businessrfeial condition and results of operations.
Additionally, as a result of the Company's ongaiagurchase of its stock in the open market, the gzotp may not be able to use the "poc

of interests" method of accounting in some acqois#t, and the Company may therefore be requir@gnortize any intangible assets acqu

in connection with any acquisition.

Additionally, unanticipated expenses may be inairedating to the integration of technologies, egsh and development, and administrative
functions. Any acquisition will involve numerousks, including difficulties in the assimilation thfe acquired company's employees,
operations and products, uncertainties associaitbdoywerating in new markets and working with navgtomers, and the potential loss of the
acquired company's key employees.

Manufacturing

The Company's Equipment products have a large nuaflmmponents and are highly complex. The Compaay experience delays and
technical and manufacturing difficulties in futuréroductions or volume production of new systemsmhancements. In addition, some of
systems built by the Company must be customizeddet individual customer site or operating requaeta. The Company has limited
manufacturing capacity and may be unable to complet development or meet the technical specifinati
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of its new systems or enhancements or to manufaetut ship these systems or enhancements in & tinaginer. Such an occurrence would
materially adversely affect the Company's busin@sancial condition and results of operations &l as its relationships with customers. In
addition, the Company may incur substantial ungraied costs early in a product's life cycle, saslincreased cost of materials due to
expediting charges, other purchasing inefficieneied greater than expected installation and sumpsis which cannot be passed on to the
customer. In certain instances, the Company isrig@ upon a sole supplier or a limited numberugpsiers, or has qualified only a single
limited number of suppliers, for certain complexmgonents or sub-assemblies utilized in its produaty of such events could materially
adversely affect the Company's business, finagoiatlition and results of operations.

Intellectual Property

There can be no assurance that any of the Compaaigst applications will be allowed or that anytha# allowed applications will be issued
as patents. There can be no assurance that amt pateed by the Company will not be invalidatedemied unenforceable, circumvented or
challenged, that the rights granted thereunderpmilVide competitive advantages to the Companyatrany of the Company's pending or
future patent applications will be issued with giaiof the scope sought by the Company, if at alftHermore, there can be no assurance that
others will not develop similar products, duplictie Company's products or design around the matemted by the Company. In addition,
there can be no assurance that foreign patensrigtiellectual property laws or the Company's agrents will protect the Company's
intellectual property rights. Failure to protect tBompany's intellectual property rights could haveaterial adverse effect upon the
Company's business, financial condition and regifltsperations.

There has been substantial litigation in the tetdgyindustry regarding intellectual property righThe Company has from time to time
received claims that it is infringing third partiggellectual property rights. In August 1993, Raell International Corporation ("Rockwell")
sued the Federal government alleging infringeménedain patent rights with respect to the corntrdlee Federal government has had with a
number of companies, including Intevac. The Fedgoakernment has notified Intevac that it may bbléan connection with contracts for
certain products in the Company's discontinuedtnigtion business. In January 1999, a settlemestnegotiated between the Federal
government and Rockwell and approved by the calmtler the settlement, all of Intevac's exposurateel to government sales is eliminated.
Rockwell has not pursued any claims related to g@rernmental sales of the products in question.

In July 1998, CVC Products, Inc. ("CVC") indicatitht they believed that the Company was infringing of their patents relating to sputter
source design. Upon investigation, Intevac's pa#otney advised the Company that it was notngirig on CVC's patent. In response to
CVC's threats of legal action, Intevac filed a ctaing for declaratory judgement of non-infringemend patent invalidity against CVC on
December 1, 1998. CVC filed a counterclaim on Janlid, 1999. Although the Company believes thatd meritorious defense against the
CVC counterclaim, there can be no assurance teatgolution of the claims by CVC will not have atarial adverse effect on the
Company's business, operating results and finaooradition.

There can be no assurance that third parties wilimthe future claim infringement by the Companith respect to current or future patents,
trademarks, or other proprietary rights relatinght® Company's disk sputtering systems, flat paraiufacturing equipment or other produ
Any present or future claims, with or without medbuld be time-consuming, result in costly litigat cause product shipment delays or
require the Company to enter into royalty or lidegsagreements. Such royalty or licensing agreesémntequired, may not be available on
terms acceptable to the Company, or at all. Anhefforegoing could have a material adverse effpon the Company's business, operating
results and financial condition.

In addition, the Company believes that one of @spetitors may be infringing the Company's patagitts in connection with products
currently being offered by this competitor. Althduthe Company has not undertaken formal legal gaiogs, the Company has informed
this competitor that the Company believes its patights are being infringed and that the Compamy nndertake litigation to protect its
patent rights if necessary. If undertaken, sudgliton could be costly, time-consuming and resulegal claims being made against the
Company. This could have a material adverse effeche Company's business, operating
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results and financial condition, and, in addititrere could be no assurance that the Company wuttindately prevail in any such litigation.
Retention of Employees

The Company believes that it has good relationk itstemployees. None of the Company's employeepigesented by a labor union, and
Company has never experienced a work stoppageCohmpany's operating results will depend in sigaificpart upon its ability to retain and
attract qualified management, engineering, margetimnufacturing, customer support, sales and asirative personnel. Competition in
northern California for such personnel is intense there can be no assurance that the Companpendliccessful in attracting and retaining
such personnel. The failure to attract and retadh personnel could make it difficult to undertakecould significantly delay the Company's
research and development efforts and any necesgspansion of its manufacturing capabilities or otdivities, which could have a material
adverse effect on the Company's business, finaoeradition and results of operations.

Leverage

In connection with the sale of $57.5 million of &1/2% Convertible Subordinated Notes Due 2004 (@onvertible Notes") in February
1997, the Company incurred a substantial increadeei ratio of long-term debt to total capitalipatishareholders' equity plus long-term
debt). The ratio at December 31, 1998 and 1997appsoximately 59.5% and 58.4%, respectively. Assallt of this indebtedness, the
Company incurred substantial principal and inteotdigations. The degree to which the Companyvstaged could have a material adverse
effect on the Company's ability to obtain additidimr@ancing for working capital, acquisitions otet purposes and could make it more
vulnerable to industry downturns and competitivesgures. The Company's ability to meet its debicepbligations will be dependent on
the Company's future performance, which will bejsaibto financial, business and other factors aifigcthe operations of the Company,
many of which are beyond its control.

Possible Volatility of Stock Price

The Company believes that factors such as annowrtsrof developments related to the Company's bssijriluctuations in the Company's
operating results, failure to meet securities sstalyexpectations, general conditions in the diskedand thin-film media manufacturing
industries and the worldwide economy, announcentechnological innovations, new systems or pob@nhancements by the Company
or its competitors, fluctuations in the level obperative development funding, acquisitions, changeovernmental regulations,
developments in patents or other intellectual priypgghts and changes in the Company's relatigosshith customers and suppliers could
cause the price of the Company's Common Stockitduhte substantially. In addition, in recent yahesstock market in general, and the
market for small capitalization and high technolaggcks in particular, has experienced extremeeghictuations which have often been
unrelated to the operating performance of affectedpanies. Such fluctuations could adversely affezimarket price of the Company's
Common Stock.

Concentration of Stock Ownership

Based on the shares outstanding on December 38, ##9present directors and their affiliates axetative officers, in the aggregate, own
beneficially approximately 56.7% of the Companyisstanding shares of Common Stock. As a resulsgtisbareholders, acting together, are
able to effectively control all matters requiringpaoval by the shareholders of the Company, inclgdihe election of a majority of the
directors and approval of significant corporatasactions.

Environmental Regulations

The Company is subject to a variety of governmemtglilations relating to the use, storage, disahargndling, emission, generation,
manufacture, treatment and disposal of toxic oeotltazardous substances, chemicals, materialsste wany failure to comply with current
or future regulations could result in
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substantial civil penalties or criminal fines beingposed on the Company or its officers, directaremployees, suspension of production,
alteration of its manufacturing process or cesaatfooperations. Such regulations could requireGhepany to acquire expensive
remediation or abatement equipment or to incurtsutisl expenses to comply with environmental ratiahs. Any failure by the Company
properly manage the use, disposal or storage @ftiequately restrict the release of, hazardousxic substances could subject the Company
to significant liabilities.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company leases all of its facilities, includaqgproximately 175,400 square feet in Santa Claatifornia. These buildings house
manufacturing, research and development, markeiiggadministration, and the Company's headquantéces. The leases for these
buildings expire in October 1999 (8,300 square)fartl March 2002 (167,100 square feet). The Compasyan option to extend the lease
with respect to 167,100 square feet for an additifime-year period, with a monthly base rent to be netgdidy the Company and the les:
If the Company and the lessor are unable to regadement with respect to such monthly base reatmbnthly base rent for the extension
will be determined by an appraisal process sef fiorthe lease.

The Company leases an 18,900 square-foot buildifpicklin, California which used to house the RTiBiBess. This lease expires in
November 2000. The Company is actively attemptingublet the property for the remaining term ofldase

The Company leases a facility of approximately 8,6Quare feet in Los Gatos, California to housd_tites Technology Division. This lease
expires in May 1999.

The Company leases a facility of approximately 8@,5quare feet in Hayward, California to houseRR& Technologies Division. This lee
expires in March 2001.

The Company leases a facility of approximately @,4Quare feet in Singapore to house the Singapsterner support organization. This
lease expires in December 1999. The Company haptaom to extend the lease for an additional yéanarket rates.

The Company leases approximately 1,400 squarénf@etiwan to house the Taiwan customer supportrorgéion. The lease expires in
October 1999.

The Company leases approximately 600 square fédalaysia to house the Malaysia customer suppgdrration. The lease expires in
February 1999. The Company has an option to extentbase for an additional year.

The Company believes that its current facilities suitable and adequate for its current and foedde@perations. The Company currently
operates with one full manufacturing shift and paetial manufacturing shift. The Company believes it currently has sufficient producti
capacity to meet its current needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
There are no material legal proceedings to whiehGbmpany is a party or to which any of its propétsubject.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY -HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of sec-holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscahyeovered by this Annual Report on Form 10-
K.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Certain information about the Company's directorsd @xecutive officers is listed below:

NAME AGE POSITION

Executive Officers and Directors:

Norman H. Pond.............cccee.. 60 Chairm an of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Charles B. Eddy Ill.................. 48 Vice P resident, Finance and Administration,
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary

Robert D. Hempstead.................. 55 Chief Operating Officer and Director

Edward Durbin(1).........cccceueee. 71 Direct or

David N. Lambeth(1)(2)............... 51 Direct or

H. Joseph Smead(2)................... 73 Direct or

(1) Member of Audit Committee
(2) Member of Compensation Committee

Mr. Pond is a founder of the Company and has semgddhairman of the Board, President and Chief Ekex Officer since February 1991.
Before joining the Company, from 1988 to 1990, Mond served as President and Chief Operating ©ffic€arian Associates, Inc.
("Vvarian"), a publicly held manufacturer of semidoictor, communication, defense and medical produbtre he was responsible for ove
management of Varian's operations. From 1984 t&198. Pond was President of Varian's Electron Bexand Systems Group and becai
Director of Varian in 1986. Prior to joining Varigllr. Pond was employed by Teledyne, a diversiéilttronics company, from 1963 to
1984 where he served in various positions, inclydis Group Executive. Mr. Pond holds a B.S. in sysom the University of Missouri at
Rolla and a M.S. in physics from the UniversityG#lifornia at Los Angeles.

Mr. Eddy has served as Vice President, Financefamainistration, Chief Financial Officer, Treasumerd Secretary of the Company since
April 1991. Mr. Eddy served as Chief Financial ©ii of Videonics, Inc., a manufacturer of consumideo editing equipment, from 1987 to
1991 and served as Chief Financial Officer of Rar@omputers, Inc., a startup computer comparmmfil983 to 1987. Mr. Eddy was with
Intel Corporation from 1974 to 1983 where he selivea variety of positions, including controllercaplant manager. Mr. Eddy holds a B.<
engineering science from the University of Virgimiad a M.B.A. from Dartmouth College.

Dr. Hempstead has served as Chief Operating Offittre Company since April 1996. He was appoird&irector of the Company in 1997.
Before joining the Company, Dr. Hempstead serveba&sutive Vice President of Censtor Corp., a mactufer of computer disk drive
heads and disks, from November 1994 to Februarg.198 was a self-employed consultant from 1989 dudsnber 1994. Dr. Hempstead
holds a B.S. and M.S. in electrical engineeringrffdassachusetts Institute of Technology and a Fh.physics from the University of
lllinois.

Mr. Durbin has served as a Director of the Compsinge February 1991. Mr. Durbin is the Vice Chainnoé Kaiser Aerospace and
Electronics Corporation ("Kaiser"), a privately thehanufacturer of electronic and electro-opticatesns, responsible for marketing and
business development since joining Kaiser in 1815 Durbin currently serves as a director for dlKaiser's subsidiaries. Mr. Durbin hold
B.S. in electrical engineering from The Cooper Wnamd a M.S. in electrical engineering from theyRalhnic Institute of Brooklyn.

Dr. Lambeth has served as a Director of the Comgarme May 1996. Dr. Lambeth has been Professelectrical and computer engineering
and Associate Director of the Data Storage Systn@arnegie Mellon University since 1989. Since8 8. Lambeth has been the owner of
Lambeth Systems, an engineering consulting firmnF1973 to 1988, Dr. Lambeth worked at Eastman Kd@ttampany's Research
Laboratories, most recently as the head of the MagMaterial Laboratory. Dr. Lambeth holds a
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B.S. in electrical engineering from the UniversifyMissouri and a Ph.D. in physics from the Massizeftts Institute of Technology.

Dr. Smead has served as a Director of the Compang &ebruary 1991. Dr. Smead joined Kaiser in 187d served as Kaiser's President
from 1974 until October 1, 1997. Dr. Smead sen&B@sident and Chairman of the Board of Direatbis Systems, Inc., Kaiser's parent
company, from 1977 until October 1, 1997. Dr. Smeadently serves as Chairman of the Board of Dinecof Kaiser and as a director for
of Kaiser's subsidiaries. Dr. Smead holds a B.&léntrical engineering from the University of Caldo, a M.S. in electrical engineering fr
the University of Washington and a Ph.D. in eleetrengineering from Purdue University.
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PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND R ELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

The Company's Common Stock commenced trading oN&lseaq National Market on November 21, 1995 amchded under the symbol
"IVAC." As of December 31, 1998, there were appnaiely 2,300 holders of record of the Common Statle following table sets forth for
the periods indicated the high and low closing gailees for the Common Stock as reported on theld@dlational Market.

HIGH LOW

Fiscal 1997

First Quarter........ccoceeeeeviveeeeeciieeeene ... $22.500 $13.250

Second Quarter........ccoeeeeeeivveeeeeennennn. ... $16.625 $12.500

Third Quarter.... . ... $17.125 $10.750

Fourth Quarter..........cccocevvveeiieeineeens ... $14.625 $7.750
Fiscal 1998

First Quarter........ccoceeeeevivieeeeiiieeeen, ... $10.375 $7.625

Second QUArter..........cccvveevveeeiveennenn, ... $11.125 $7.500

Third Quarter........ccccocoveeeeveeeieeecnnen. ... $10.875 $6.250

Fourth Quarter...........cccceevvveeeeiiineeenn. ... $10.000 $5.875

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company currently anticipates that it will ietds earnings, if any, for use in the operatidit®business and does not expect to pay cast
dividends on its capital stock in the foreseeabtare. The Company's line of credit prohibits tlagment of cash dividends on the Company's

capital stock.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data of the Companqualified by reference to and should be reacbinjunction with the consolidated
financial statements of the Company, includingrtbtes thereto, and Management's Discussion and/giealf Financial Condition and
Results of Operations, each appearing elsewhetlasifReport.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1998 1997 1996 1995(2) 1994

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA:
Net Revenues:

Disk, flat panel and other........c...ccocceeee. L $95,975 $133,207 $88,232 $42,187 $ 18,266
= ) PP - - - 695 2,185
Total net revenues.......cccoeveveeeeeee L 95,975 133,207 88,232 42,882 20,451
Cost of net revenues:
Disk, flat panel and other..........ccccooceeeee.. L 71,717 91,255 55,652 27,280 11,799
MBE(L)viiiiiie i - - - 434 858
Total cost of net revenues................. .. 71,717 91,255 55,652 27,714 12,657
Gross Profit..ccccocvceivciiiiiieeieeeeees L 24,258 41,952 32,580 15,168 7,794
Operating expenses:
Research and development..........ccccoocveee. L 12,743 10,716 8,425 2,603 3,515
Selling, general and administrative. — 10,879 11,399 8,391 4,550 2,248
ReStructuring....ccoceveviiiieiiiieeeeeeeee 1,088 - - - --
Acquired in-process research and development..... ... - 299 5,835 - --
Total operating expenses.........cceeeeeee. L 24,710 22,414 22,651 7,153 5,763
Operating income (I0SS).....ccooveevvcvvveaneeeee (452) 19,538 9,929 8,015 2,031
INterest eXPenSe.....cocvveeeeeviveeneeeeeeeeeeee (4,187) (3,581) (175) (13) (63)
Interest income and other income, net............. ... 3,176 3,268 1,569 942 533
Income (loss) from continuing operations before inc ome
BAXES. iiiiii it (1,463) 19,225 11,323 8,944 2,501
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes.......... ... (882) 6,728 6,350 3,179 826
Income (loss) from continuing operations........... . ... (581) 12,497 4,973 5,765 1,675
Income (loss) from discontinued operations......... . ... 1,005 -- - 1,335 (267)
NEtiNCOME....viiiiiiiiii e $ 424 $12,497 $4973 $7,100 $ 1,408
Basic earnings per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations......... ... $ (0.05) $ 1.00 $ 040 $ 158 $ 2.39
NetinComMe....ocoveviiiiii e $ 004 $ 100 $040 $194 $ 2.01
Shares used in per share calculations............ ... 12,052 12,514 12,311 3,653 700
Diluted earnings per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations......... ... $ (0.05) $ 094 $ 039 $ 058 $ 0.18
NetinCoOmMe....cooveiiiiii e $ 003 $ 094 $039 $072 % 0.15
Shares used in per share calculations............ ... 12,354 15,385 12,901 9,881 9,489
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments.. ... $60,916 $71,142 $ 938 $20,422 $ 13,347
Working capital....ccccocceveeeeeeiiiiiiiiiccceee L 77,774 78,025 15,847 21,327 23,229
Total @SSetS..ccoieeiiii i 122,976 147,794 68,085 51,160 42,749

Long-term debt.... —“— 59,461 59,480 730 -
Redeemable Series 1 Preferred Stock................ . .. - - -- -

Total shareholders' equity.........ccoeccvveveeee L 40,436 42,435 33,736 27,320 22,987
Cash dividends declared per common share.......... . ... - - -~ 0.495 --

(2) In the fourth quarter of 1993, the Company stdolecular Beam Epitaxi ("MBE") Operations aachuired 20% of the outstanding
capital stock of Chorus, a manufacturer of MBE jpicid. The Company retained rights to sell cert#ieioresidual used systems of the MBE
business that were not exchanged with Chorus. dleeof these used systems was completed durinfiyshguarter of 1995.

(2) During 1995, the Company (a) effected a readipétion in which each outstanding share of Seki€seferred Stock was exchanged for
two thirds of a share of Common Stock and $0.769(&éllion in aggregate), (b) paid $4.9 milliondif/idends to the common shareholders,
(c) paid $6.1 million to redeem the Series 1 PreféfStock, and (d) received approximately $12.0ianilfrom the sale of common stock
during the Initial Public Offering.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis contains Bmadvlooking statements which involve risks and utaisties. Words such as "believes"”,
"expects"”, "anticipates" and the like indicate fardrlooking statements. The Company's actual iesudty differ materially from the results
discussed in the forward- looking statements feargety of reasons, including those set forth ui@Rsk Factors Affecting the Company's
Business" and should be read in conjunction with@onsolidated Financial Statements and relateddNmintained elsewhere in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net revenues. Net revenues consist primarily afssaf the Company's disk sputtering systems amatiedekequipment used to manufact
thin-film disks for computer hard disk drives, atma lesser extent, system components, flat ghisplay manufacturing equipment, electron
beam processing equipment and contract researctiearebpment in the photonics business. Net revefroen the sales of sputtering
systems, flat panel equipment and electron beaepsing equipment are recognized upon customept@ez. Net revenues from the sales
of system components and other systems are re@ajoon product shipment. Contract research anel@@went net revenue is recognized
in accordance with contract terms, typically agsase incurred. Net revenues totaled $96.0 millg#r83.2 million and $88.2 million in 19¢
1997 and 1996, respectively. Net revenues decreaskd98 from 1997 primarily due to a decreasedhravenues from disk sputtering
systems and related equipment, which was paridifet by an increase in net revenues from flaepaguipment, electron beam processing
equipment and contract research and developméngiphotonics business. Net revenues increasedXe®® to 1997 primarily due to an
increase in net revenues from disk sputtering syst@nd related equipment and to a lesser exteheagsult of an increase in net revenues
from flat panel equipment and contract researchdavelopment in the photonics business. The Conipamagklog of orders at December
1998 was $26.1 million as compared to a Decembget 347 order backlog of $73.8 million. The majoutythese orders are expected to be
recognized for revenue during the first half of 29&iven the Company's manufacturing lead timesi@nahwillingness to build systems in
anticipation of orders not yet received, it is likeevenues in the first half of 1999 will continaeapproximately the reduced levels
experienced during the second half of 1998. Tharebe no assurance that these lower revenue lgileiet extend beyond the first half of
1999.

Matsubo, the Company's Japanese distributor, HMhii@logy and MMC Technology each accounted for ntioa@ 10% of the Company's
net revenues during 1998. The shipments to Matsuth®98 were delivered to Fuji Electric, MitsubisHitachi, Nippon Sheet Glass and
Fujitsu. Matsubo, HMT Technology and Trace Stordgehnology each accounted for more than 10% o€tirapany's net revenues during
1997. Matsubo, Seagate and HMT Technology eachuated for more than 10% of the Company's net rezeniuring 1996.

Foreign sales totaled $51.0 million, $84.7 millemd $36.4 million in 1998, 1997 and 1996, respetfivi-oreign sales accounted for 53%,
64% and 41% of net revenues in 1998, 1997 and 189fectively. The decrease in foreign sales fré8vto 1998 was primarily the result
of decreased sales of equipment, primarily disktepng systems. The increase in foreign sales ft686 to 1997 was primarily the result of
increased sales of equipment, primarily disk spuiesystems. Substantially all of the Companyteifin sales are to customers in the Far
East. Substantially all of the Company's sales wlermminated in US dollars.

Gross margin. Cost of net revenues consists priynafrpurchased materials, fabrication, assemialst, installation, warranty costs and costs
attributable to contract research and developnt&miss margin for disk, flat panel and other wa8%§.31.5% and 36.9% in 1998, 1997 and
1996, respectively. The reduction in gross margirk998 from 1997 was primarily due to lower volwsrand increased pricing pressure ir
equipment business, and, to a lesser extent thatimegross margin incurred on the first RIGEL fiahel sputtering system acceptance and a
greater percentage of net revenues being derioed électron beam processing equipment and cormraetirch and development in the
photonics business, both of which currently gemegabss margins below those generated by disk egurip The reduction in gross margins

in
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1997 from 1996 was primarily due to reduced margm&quipment, primarily disk sputtering systenos which product costs increased
more than the Company's ability to increase prices.

Gross margins declined from 27.0% during the thirdrter of 1998 to 5.2% during the fourth quarfet@98. Additions to inventory reserv:
low volume and a greater percentage of revenueetbfrom contract research and development werprih@ry reasons for the decline in
gross margins. Additionally, during the fourth gearf 1998, a number of used MDP-250B systemsrbecavailable for resale: four systems
as the result of the bankruptcy of StorMedia; and system as the result of the Company's desinpdmade its internally capitalized MDP-
250B training system to a newer model MDP-250K exystAs of December 31, 1998 the Company had regeiraers for four of these five
used systems. In January 1999, the Company acdhiegfdur used MDP-250B systems from StorMediaésale. The Company plans to
deliver these systems during the first half of 1888 expects that there will be little contributiongross margin from these systems which
were re-marketed at values approximating cost. Aesalt of the above factors, the Company expéetsgross margins will continue to be
depressed during the first half of 1999.

Research and development. Research and developwpmarise consists primarily of prototype materisddaries and related costs of
employees engaged in ongoing research, designev@dogppment activities for disk equipment, flat pagisplay manufacturing equipment ¢
electron beam processing equipment, and the cbsts@arch by the company's photonics business p@oyfunded research and
development expense totaled $12.7 million, $10Iianiand $8.4 million in 1998, 1997 and 1996, edpvely. The $2.0 million increase
from 1997 to 1998 was caused primarily by highgremses related to development of disk equipmentiafha offset by a reduction in
expenses related to development of flat panel egenp. The $2.3 million increase from 1996 to 19%&waused primarily by higher
expenses related to development of disk equipnresitding the development of a new line of conttop-start test equipment and
development of flat panel manufacturing equipment.

Research and development expenses do not inclstie @iob1.4 million, $1.3 million and $1.3 millighat were incurred by the Company in
1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively, and reimburseénthe terms of a research and development bashg agreement with the Company's
Japanese development partner. At December 31, $8%million of the $9.5 million in funds avail&blnder this cost sharing agreement
been used. Future joint development under thisesgeat is contingent upon the Company's abilityeigatiate further amendments to the
development agreement. There can be no assuraatabehCompany will obtain further amendments odhvelopment agreement.

Selling, general and administrative. Selling, gahand administrative expense consists primarilgedling, marketing, financial, travel,
management, legal and professional services ddstaestic sales are made by the Company's direxs $aidce, whereas international sales
are made by distributors that typically provideesainstallation, warranty and ongoing customepeup Selling, general and administrative
expense totaled $10.9 million, $11.4 million and4®illion in 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectivelyresenting 11.3%, 8.6% and 9.5% of net
revenues. The $0.5 million decrease in sellingegarand administration expenses from 1997 to 1888 primarily the result of headcount
reductions that took place in March and August288. The $3.0 million increase in selling, genarad administrative expenses from 199
1997 was primarily the result of increased marlgetind administration expenses related to incresaled of disk equipment and to a lesser
extent, increased corporate administrative codlglam acquisition of RPC in late 1997.

Restructuring expense. In March 1998, the Compangisagement adopted a restructuring plan to redataRapid Thermal Processing
Operation from Rocklin, California to the Compan$anta Clara, California headquarters and to dles®ocklin facility. The restructuring
plan also included a 20% reduction in the worldwstif of the Company's contract and regular eng#gy In August 1998, the Company
terminated an additional 9% of its workforce. Aieault of the restructuring plan and the Augustuogion in force, the Company incurred
approximately $1.1M of restructuring expense dufifg8. The restructuring expense included approein&0.7M related to closure of the
Rocklin facility and approximately $0.4M of sevecarpay for terminated employees.

Acquired in-process research and development. Tmep@ny recognized a charge for acquired in-proessarch and development of $0.3
million during 1997 as a result of the acquisitafRPC and
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recognized a charge for acquired in-process researd development of $5.8 million in 1996 as a ltesfithe acquisitions of SJT and Lotus.

Interest expense. Interest expense in 1998 and d@%sisted primarily of interest on the Convertilietes issued in the first quarter of 1997.
Interest expense totaled $4.2 million, $3.6 millaord $0.2 million in 1998, 1997 and 1996, respetyiv

Interest and other income, net. Interest and atfeeme, net totaled $3.2 million, $3.3 million add.6 million in 1998, 1997 and 1996,
respectively. Interest and other income in 199&isted of interest income on the Company's investspelividend income on the Company's
interest in the 601 California Avenue LLC, defermadome related to the sale of the Company's isténeChorus Corporation and early
payment discounts, which were partially offset igsles on foreign currency forward contracts. listemad other income in 1997 consisted of
interest income, deferred income related to the sbthe Company's interest in Chorus Corporatiahearly payment discounts, which were
partially offset by a foreign currency translatioss. Other income during 1996 consisted primarilgeferred income recognized on the sale
of the Company's interest in Chorus Corporationiatetest income and, to a lesser extent, earlyngay discounts.

Discontinued operations. In March 1995, the Compaahgpted a formal plan to discontinue its nightorisbusiness. The Company sold its
night vision business to Litton Systems, Inc. inyM#&95. In 1998 the Company recognized net incawm fliscontinued operations of $1.0
million, net of income taxes, generated from theersal of reserves established at the time ofdleand from payment received from Litton
for excess warranty reserves transferred duringales of the night vision business.

Provision for income taxes. For the year ended Béeg 31, 1998, the Company had a $387,000 tax ibgme¥ision on pretax income of
$37,000. The Company's tax benefit was primarily tlutax-exempt interest income and benefits floenGompany's foreign sales
corporation, partially offset by non-deductible dadll amortization. Income tax expense as a pesgmbf pretax income was 35% and 56%
in 1997 and 1996, respectively. The Company'sadéxin 1996 differed from the applicable statut@tes primarily due to non-deductible
expenses for acquired in-process research andageweht and goodwill amortization, state income seexed benefits from the Company's
foreign sales corporation.

A net deferred tax asset of $8.2 million is reféetin the financial statements at December 31, 1B88ed on the Company's historical
taxable income and projected future earnings, mamagt believes it is more likely than not that @empany will realize the benefit of this
asset.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company's operating activities in 1998 usett c&$5.1 million, primarily due to a $16.6 milliatecrease in customer advances, a $3.0
million decrease in accrued payroll and other liaés and a $2.6 million decrease in accounts pkyavhich were partially offset by an $1
million decrease in inventory and $7.4 million @&fdeciation and amortization.

Investing activities in 1998 used cash of $12.7iomlprimarily due to the net purchase of $10.2lioml of investments and the purchase of
$2.9 million of property and equipment.

Financing activities in 1998 used $2.7 million akb primarily as a result of the repurchase of BY shares of the Company's common ¢
for $3.8 million under the Company's stock repusehplan, which was partially offset by $1.1 millimnproceeds from the sale of the
Company's stock to employees under the employe& syation and employee stock purchase plans.

At December 31, 1998, the Company had $60.9 milibcash, cash equivalents and short-term invegsnanaddition, the Company has a
$10.0 million revolving line of credit, which exps May 1, 1999. Borrowings bear interest at priaie or the LIBOR rate plus 175 basis
points. The line of credit agreement requires tbenany to maintain certain financial ratios anceotfinancial conditions. The Company
expects to renew the line of credit in 1999.
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The Company intends to undertake approximately 88l@n in capital expenditures during the nextrh@nths. The Company believes the
existing cash and cash equivalent balances ani taetlities will be sufficient to meet its casbquirements for at least the next twelve
months. While operating activities may provide casbertain periods, to the extent the Company experience growth in the future, the
Company anticipates that its operating and invgsittivities may use cash and, consequently, stmlit may require the Company to
obtain additional sources of financing. The Compamay also from time to time consider the acquigitdd complementary businesses,
products or technologies, which may require add#idinancing. There can be no assurance thatfiuahcing will be available on attractive
terms, on a non-dilutive basis, or at all.

YEAR 2000

The Company is preparing for the impact of thevairof the Year 2000 on its business, as well atherbusiness of its customers, suppliers
and business partners. The "Year 2000 Issue"éma tised to describe the problems created by sgdteahare unable to accurately interpret
dates after December 31, 1999. These problemseaire=d predominately from the fact that many sofeyarograms have historically
categorized "years" in a two-digit format. The Y2800 Issue creates potential risks for the Compiagjuding potential problems in the
Company's products as well as in the Informatiochfelogy ("IT") and non-IT systems that the Compasgs in its business operations. The
Company may also be exposed to risks from thirtiggawith which the Company interacts who fail ttiequately address their own Year
2000 Issues.

Intevac is in the process of implementing planaddress Year 2000 Issues both within and outsigl€tmpany. In addressing the Year 2000
issues and risks, the Company has focused, andamitinue to focus, its efforts on the Companytegmise-wide and departmental
operations, products, critical suppliers (includsggvice providers) and key customers. Within late\these efforts are intended to encom

all major categories of computer systems in usthbyCompany, including those utilized in manufaiciylrengineering, sales, finance and
human resources. The Company's risk assessmeamdé@sclinderstanding the Year 2000 readiness dfititsat suppliers. The Company's risk
assessment process associated with critical supjiieludes soliciting and analyzing responseaustjonnaires, and, where necessary,
follow-up with the supplier.

The Company is utilizing a phased approach to ifjémg and remediating Year 2000 Issues. The fitsise, compiling an inventory of all
systems that face risks from Year 2000 Issues swhstantially completed by year-end 1998. The e#n, remediation and validation &
implementation phases are expected to be compjatad 1999 for all areas. The Company is actingetoedy issues as they are revealed,
while it simultaneously completes its assessmeneair 2000 risks.

Corrective actions completed to date include thglémentation of system upgrades to the Companyteria and financial software,
upgrades to file server operating systems andcepiant of payroll and human resource software.ddrapany also issued a Product
Information Bulletin to customers outlining the Y&#00 Issues faced by the Company's principalypbdhe MDP-250 sputtering system,
and proposed fixes.

Cost incurred to date in addressing Year 2000 kshage not been material. Based on assessmenbapdtidn projects underway, the
Company does not expect the total cost of addrgs¢kaYear 2000 Issue to be material. As the Coripaisk assessment and correction
activities continue, these cost estimates may ahangaddition, the Company's total cost estimateschot include potential costs related to
any customer or other claims resulting from the @any's failure to adequately correct Year 2000dssu

Although the Company does not currently expectsaggificant disruption to its operations or oparngtresults as a result of Year 2000 Iss
the Company is taking all steps it believes are@mpate to identify and resolve any Year 2000 éssuHowever, there can be no assurance
that the Company will be able to identify, assass @rrect Year 2000 Issues in a timely or succéssnner. The Company's failure to
identify, assess and correct Year 2000 Issuegimedy manner could have a material, adverse etiadhe Company's business, financial
condition and results of operations.
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The Company currently believes that its most reallyrlikely worst case Year 2000 scenario wouldtesto problems with systems of third
parties which would create the greatest risks wittastructure, including water and sewer serviedsgtricity, transportation,
telecommunications and critical suppliers of matsrand supplies. The Company has not yet pre@acedtingency plan for dealing with
these potential problems. The Company will be assgwvarious scenarios and will prepare the necgssmtingency plan over the course of
1999.

The foregoing statements regarding the Companyés @00 plans and the Company's expectation foivieg these issues and costs
associated therewith are forward-looking statemantsactual results could vary. The Company's sisciceaddressing Year 2000 Issues
could be impacted by the severity of the problenset resolved within the Company, by Year 2000dssaffecting its suppliers and service
providers and by the costs associated with thirtygnsultants and software necessary to addnesg tissues.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKE T RISK

Interest rate risk. The Company's exposure to niailefor changes in interest rates relates piilmés the Company's investment portfolio.

The Company does not use derivative financial imsants in its investment portfolio. The Companycphkits investments with high quality

credit issuers and, by policy, limits the amounti&dit exposure to any one issuer. Short-termsimrents typically consist of investments in
tax-exempt market auction rate preferred munidimaids.

The table below presents principal amounts ande@laeighted-average interest rates by year of rityafor the Company's investment
portfolio and debt obligations.

FAIR
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 BEYOND TOTAL VALUE
(IN THOUSANDS)
Cash equivalents
Variable rate............ $2,846 -- - - - - - $2,846 $2,846
Average rate............. 4.89% -- - - - - --
Short-term investments
Variable rate............ $56,925 - - - - - -- $56,925 $56,925
Average rate............. 3.88% -- - - - - --
Total investments
Securities............... $59,771 - - - - - - $59,771 $59,771
Average rate............. 3.93% -- - - - - --
Long-term debt
Fixed rate............... - - $1,96 1 - - $57,500 $59,461 $36,461
Average rate............. 6.47% 6.47% 6.4 7% 6.50% 6.50% 6.50%

Foreign exchange risk. From time to time, the Camygenters into foreign currency forward exchangetiaxts to economically hedge cert

of its anticipated foreign currency transactioansiation and re-measurement exposures. The olgeftthese contracts is to minimize the
impact of foreign currency exchange rate movementdhe Company's operating results. At Decembef 348, the Company had
approximately $11.6 million (notional amount) obstterm foreign currency forward exchange congagnominated in yen, which have not
been designated as hedge contracts for accouniipgges. These contracts expire at various datesgh the third quarter of 1999.

20



The following table provides information about Bempany's foreign currency forward exchange cotgracDecember 31, 1998.

AVERAGE ESTIMATED
NOTIONAL CONTRACT FAIR
AMOUNT  RATE VALUE

(IN THOUSANDS
EXCEPT CONTRACT RATE)
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts:
Japanese YeN......coccovvuveeveeeiieesiaeeeeee $11,592 120.33  $(894)

21



ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
INTEVAC, INC.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTENTS

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors.. ... 23
Consolidated Balance Sheets..........ccoccceeveeeee. Ll 24
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive

INCOME..ciiiiiiiiiiiii e 25
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity.... ... 26
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows............ ... 27
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements......... ... 28



REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Intevac, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Intevac, Inc. as of December 31, 48881997, and the related
consolidated statements of income and compreheisivene, shareholders' equity and cash flows foh ed the three years in the period
ended December 31, 1998. Our audits also inclugedinancial statement schedule listed in the Inatdxem 14(a). These financial
statements and schedule are the responsibilityeo€ompany's management. Our responsibility ixpoess an opinion on these financial
statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with geneaaltepted auditing standards. Those standardgedbhat we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whethenthedial statements are free of material misstatésném audit includes examining, on a
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and digelesn the financial statements. An audit alsoudek assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by managememtell as evaluating the overall financial statetpeesentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the consolidated financial posi
of Intevac, Inc. at December 31, 1998 and 1997 thedonsolidated results of its operations andah flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 1998, in conformitly generally accepted accounting principles. Ala@ur opinion, the related financial
statement schedule, when considered in relatidinetdasic financial statements taken as a whobsepits fairly in all material respects the
information set forth therein.

Ernst & Young LLP

San Jose, California
January 19, 1999
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INTEVAC, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(IN THOUSANDS)

DECEMBER 31,

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents...............ccc......
Short-term investments

$ 3,991 $24,431
56,925 46,711

Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $1,629 and

$1,505 at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectiv ely...... 10,169 9,634
Inventories, including $3,389 and $8,259 at custo mers at

December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively....... ... 22,102 35,915
Short-term note receivable, arising from the sale of the

investment in Chorus Corporation, net of allowa nce of

$395 at December 31, 1997.....ccccoevvveeeeee. - -
658 641

Prepaid expenses and other current assets........
Deferred tax assets..........ccocuveeernunennn. 7,008 6,572
Total current assets.......cccceeeveeeeee 100,853 123,904
Property, plant, and equipment, at cost:
Buildings and improvements..........cccoeeeeeeeee. L. 6,262 6,212
Machinery and equipment..........ccccoeeeeeeeeee L. 17,747 13,875
24,009 20,087
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization... ... 10,878 6,327
13,131 13,760
Investment in 601 California Avenue LLC............. ... 2,431 2,431
Goodwill, net of amortization of $3,471 and $2,273 at
December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively........ ... 3,083 4,281
Other intangibles, net of amortization of $1,981 an d $1,378
at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively...... ... 460 1,063
Debt issuance costs, net of amortization of $603 an d $274 at
December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively........ ... 1,700 2,029
Deferred tax assets and other long term assets..... ... 1,318 326
Total @sSetS..ccovvvvevcveicieiceeiee $122,976 $147,794
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS 'EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related liabilities..........
Accrued income taxes........ccccveeeennn...
Accrued product warranties
Other accrued liabilities........................
Book overdraft
Customer advances
Net liabilities of discontinued operations.......

Total current liabilities.................
Convertible notes.............
Other long-term debt
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders' equity:
Undesignated preferred stock, no par value, 10,00 0 shares
authorized, no shares issued and outstanding... ... -- --
Common stock, no par value:
Authorized shares -- 50,000
Issued and outstanding shares -- 11,887 and 12,

December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively...... 17,336
Other comprehensive income --
Retained earnings..........cccoocvveeeennnennn. 25,099

Total shareholders' equity................ 42,435
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $147,794

See accompanying notes.
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INTEVAC, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1998 1997 1996

Net reVENUES.....ccocvviiiiiiiieiieseeeeeee $95,975 $133,207 $88,232
Cost of net revenues.......ccoocceeeeevcceeeennee 71,717 91,255 55,652
Gross Profit..eeeeeecieeeeieieee 24,258 41,952 32,580
Operating expenses:
Research and development........ccccccoeeeeeeee. Ll 12,743 10,716 8,425
Selling, general, and administrative........... ... 10,879 11,399 8,391
ReStruCturing.....ccvvevveeveveneeeeeieieeceeeee 1,088 -- --
Acquired in-process research and development..... ... - 299 5,835
Total operating expenses..........cce.ee. .. 24,710 22,414 22,651
Operating income (I0SS)....ccoccvvvvvvveeeeniieeee . (452) 19,538 9,929
Interest expense o (4,187) (3,581) (175)
Interest iNCOMe.......coovvveveviciicciiceees 2,832 2,270 662
Other income and expense, Net......ccccceeveveeeeee Ll 344 998 907
Income (loss) from continuing operations before inc ome
LAXES i ——— (1,463) 19,225 11,323
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes.......... . ... (882) 6,728 6,350
Income (loss) from continuing operations............ ... (581) 12,497 4,973
Discontinued operations:
Gain from discontinued operations, net of applica ble
income taxes of $495.......cccovevvvvceeeeee. 1,005 - -
Income from discontinued operations................ ... 1,005 - -
NetinCOMe....cccvvvveiieiieeceee e $ 424 $12,497 $4,973
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized foreign currency translation adjustmen | PR 122 -- --
Total adjustments.......ccoccevvvveceniccceeees 122 - -
Total comprehensive income.........ccccccoeeeveeee. . $ 546 $12,497 $4,973
Basic earnings per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations......... ... $(0.05) $ 100 $ 0.40
NEetiNCOME....ooovvieiiiee e, $ 004 $ 1.00 $ 040
Shares used in per share amounts.......ccccce.... L. 12,052 12,514 12,311
Diluted earnings per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations......... ... $(0.05) $ 094 $ 0.39
NEetiNCOME....oocvvveiiiise e, $ 003 $ 094 $ 0.39
Shares used in per share amounts.......cccccee... L. 12,354 15,385 12,901

See accompanying notes.
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INTEVAC, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CO

SHAR
Balance at December 31, 1995................. 12,2
Initial public offering costs..............
Sale of common stock under stock option
plan......cooi 1
Sale of common stock under employee stock
purchase plan.........ccccoovecivnenne
Income tax benefits realized from activity
in employee stock plans.................
Net income........ccoocveveiiiiiieeenns
Balance at December 31, 1996................. 12,4
Sale of common stock under stock option

Sale of common stock under employee stock
purchase plan.........cccooevecivnnnne 1
Repurchase of common stock................. (4
Income tax benefits realized from activity
in employee stock plans.................
Net income.......cccoccvvveiiiinienennns
Balance at December 31, 1997................. 12,1
Sale of common stock under stock option

Sale of common stock under employee stock
purchase plan..........cccccoeevueenn. 1
Repurchase of common stock................. (4
Income tax benefits realized from activity
in employee stock plans.................
Change in foreign currency translation
adjustments....
Netincome..........ccceeviiincinenn.

Balance at December 31, 1998................. 11,8

See accompanying notes.

(IN THOUSANDS)

ACCUMULATED
MMON STOCK OTHER TOTAL
------------ COMPREHENSIVE RETAINED STOCKHOLD
ES AMOUNT INCOME EARNINGS  EQUITY

48 $15304 $-  $12,016  $27,32
- - -

39 438 - - 43

62 322 - - 32

~ 690 - - 69
- - 4,973 4,97

49 16,747 - 16,989 33,73
37 106 - - 10

43 850 - - 85

75) (640) - (4,387) (5,02
~ 273 - - 27
- - 12,497 12,49

54 17,336 - 25099 42,43
39 130 - - 13

51 1,001 - - 1,00

57) (670) - (3126) (3,79
~ 120 - - 12

- - 122 - 12

- - - 424 42

87 $17,917 $122 $22,397 $40,43
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INTEVAC, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) from continuing operations...........
Income from discontinued operations................

Net iNCOME.......ccuvveeiiiiiieeeiiee e
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash and
equivalents provided by (used in) operating activ
Depreciation...........cccoocevviviiieeennnnnn.
Amortization of intangibles.....................
Acquired in-process research and development.....
Gain on sale of Chorus investment................
Gain on sale of discontinued operations..........
Loss on IMAT investment............ccccceeuueee.
Restructuring charge -- non-cash portion
Loss on disposal of equipment....................
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable...............ccocceene
INVENLOIY....ccooviiiiiiiiieeecee
Prepaid expenses and other assets..............
Accounts payable............ccccoiiiiiinnnnnn
Accrued payroll and other accrued liabilities..
Customer advances..........cccoeevveeeenunnen.
Discontinued operations -- non-cash changes and
capital
changes........cccoviiieiiiiiiiiee s

Total adjustments..........cccoeeveveeeeniienenn.

Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (used in)
operating activities..........cccoevuveeernnns

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of investments...............ccccceeeee

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments..

Purchase of equipment............ccccceeeeinnns

Investment in Cathode Technology Corporation.......

Investment in San Jose Technology Corporation......

Investment in Lotus Technologies, Inc

Investment in IMAT........coooviiieniiiieeee

Investment in RPC Industries.............cccc......

Proceeds from sale of Chorus Investment............

Net cash and cash equivalents used in investing
ACHVILIES...eeeiiiiiiie e

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Notes payable and line of credit repayments........

Proceeds from issuance of common stock.............

Repurchase of common stock............ccceeuveeee.

Proceeds from convertible bond offering

Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (used in)
financing activities.............ccccceennnn.

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period...

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period.........

Cash paid (received) for:
INterest.......cooovveiiiiiiieeeee
INCOME taXES.....vvvveiieieiieiiiiiiiies
Income tax refund...........ccccovveerinneennne
Other non-cash changes:
Investment in Cathode Technology Corporation thro
assumption of notes payabile....................
Inventories transferred to (from) property, plant
(1o [UT] o]0 1=] o | SR,
Income tax benefit realized from activity in empl
StOCK plans.......ccooovveeeiiiiieeien,

See accompanying note

(IN THOUSANDS)

YEARS ENDING DECEMBER 31,

1998 1997 1996

--------- $ (581) $ 12,497 $ 4,973
......... 1,005 - -

......... 424 12,497 4,973

5,244 2,588 1,354
2,130 2,435 1,490

- 299 5835
......... (395)  (785)  (593)
(794) - -
206 144 -
506 - -
206 79 5

......... (535) 8,377 (12,344)
11,818 (8,494) (11,313)
v (1,651)  (2,1219)  (1,132)
......... (2,551) (207) 1,464
......... (3,049) 5,593 (284)
......... (16,617) 5,102 5,251
working

......... - 194  (380)

......... (5482) 13,306 (10,647)

25,803  (5,674)

(118,345)  (2,571)
71,634 2571
(6,092) (3,854)
~  (1,074)
~  (2,270)
~  (8,135)

(436) -
(955) -
785 770

......... (12,717)  (53,409) (14,563)

- 27) -

1,131 956 753

(3,796)  (5,027) -
~ 55197 -

......... (2,665) 51,099 753

(20,440) 23,493 (19,484)
24,431 938 20,422

......... $ 3,991 $ 24431 $ 938

......... $ 3841 $ 2,074 $ 149
......... 4,065 6,233 9,321

......... - - (250)

ugh

......... $ - $ - $ 1980
and

......... (767) 567 3,094
oyee

......... 120 273 690
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INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. BUSINESS AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Intevac, Inc. ("Intevac” or the "Company") was feann October 1990 for the purpose of acquiringatetbusiness assets and liabilities from
Varian Associates, Inc. ("Varian"). In February 198ertain agreements were entered into betweeiarvand the Company, which provided
for the transfer of the assets and business o aridisk sputtering equipment business, nightwidievice business and molecular beam
epitaxy ("MBE") equipment business to Intevac. let@ber 1993, certain assets of the MBE business @xchanged for a 20% ownership in
the outstanding stock of Chorus Corporation ("Ch8ua manufacturer of MBE products. In the secqudrter of 1995, the Company
completed the sale of its night vision businesksition Systems, Inc. for cash. The Company retaitesthin personnel from the night vision
business and formed the Photonics Technology Dni§IPTD").

The Company is a leading supplier of static spintesystems and related manufacturing equipment tssmanufacture thin-film disks for
computer hard disk drives. The Company's pringjpatiuct, the MDF250 disk sputtering system, enables disk manufexguo produce hig
performance, high capacity disks. The Company géslisputtering systems to both captive and meitctém film disk manufacturers. The
Company sells and markets its products directthénUnited States, and through exclusive distritsuito Japan and Korea. The Company
supports its customers in Southeast Asia througwlitolly owned subsidiaries in Singapore and Masagad a branch office in Taiwan.

In the first quarter of 1996, the Company purchaakdf the outstanding stock of Cathode Technol@gyporation ("Cathode"). Cathode
designs and manufactures magnetron sputter soiamcese in the Company's disk sputtering systemshe second quarter of 1996, the
Company purchased all of the outstanding stockaof ose Technology Corp. ("SJT"). SJT is a manufacbf systems used to lubricate thin
film disks. Also in the second quarter of 1996, @@mmpany purchased all of the outstanding stodkotiis Technologies, Inc. ("Lotus").

Lotus is a manufacturer of contact stop/startégsipment for disk drives and drive components tiidbe of the acquisitions were accounted
for under the purchase method.

In the fourth quarter of 1997, the Company annodr&cesorganization which included the formationhaf Disk Equipment Business Unit ¢
the Flat Panel Display Equipment Division. The Diskuipment Business Unit includes Intevac's Vac@ystem Division, the San Jose
Technology Division and the Lotus Technology Digisi The Flat Panel Display Equipment Division irigs Intevac's D-Star line of
sputtering equipment and Intevac's Rapid Thermatéasing ("RTP") Operation. Also in the fourth daaof 1997, the Company purchased
all of the assets of RPC Industries ("RPC"). RP& sanufacturer of electron beam processing systéhis acquisition was accounted for
under the purchase method.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include tu@ants of Intevac and its wholly owned subsideril inter-company transactions and
balances have been eliminated.

Revenue Recognition

Systems and components -- Revenues for disk spugfteystems, flat panel equipment and electron bg@ressing systems are recognized
upon customer acceptance. Revenues for other systedifor system component sales are recognizeusippment.

Service and Maintenance -- Service and maintenemeact revenue, which to date has been insigmifids recognized ratably over
applicable contract periods or as services ar@padd.

Technology Development -- The Company performs bstts research and development work under vaniesearch contracts. Revenue on
these contracts is recognized in accordance witkract terms,
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INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONT INUED)

typically as costs are incurred. Typically, for k@ontract, the Company commits to perform cemegearch and development efforts up t
agreed upon amount. In connection with these coistrthe Company receives funding on an increméatsis up to a ceiling. Upon
completion of each contract, each party will tyfliceeceive certain rights to the technical and paoiter software data developed under the
contract. Some of these contracts are cost-sharingture, where Intevac is reimbursed for a partibthe total costs expended. In addition,
the Company has, from time to time, negotiated withird party to fund a portion of the Companysts in return for a joint interest to the
Company's rights at the end of the contract.

Net revenues and related cost of net revenuesiatsbaevith these contracts were $5,931,000 and$5080 for 1998, respectivel
$5,184,000 and $5,871,000 for 1997, respectivety$3)265,000 and $3,758,000 for 1996, respectively.

Warranty

The Company's standard warranty is twelve months ftustomer acceptance. During this warranty peaigdnecessary non-consumable
parts are supplied and installed. A provision far €stimated cost of warranty is recorded uporooust acceptance for systems and upon
shipment for non-system products.

International Distribution Costs

The Company makes payments to agents and distrébutmler certain agreements related to interndtsates in return for obtaining orders
and providing installation and warranty servicesrt&in of these payments to agents and distribat@ $ncluded in cost of net revenues.
These amounts totaled approximately $72,000, $10096and $3,743,000 for the years ended Decembdr9®8, 1997 and 1996,
respectively.

Advertising Expenses

The Company accounts for advertising costs as eei@rthe period in which they are incurred. Adeary expenses for 1998, 1997 and
1996 were insignificant.

Customer Advances

Customer advances generally represent nonrefundabplesits invoiced by the Company in connectiowéceiving customer purchase
orders and shipment of the systems. Customer adsaptated to systems that have not been shippagstomers included in accounts
receivable represent $1,839,000 and $2,136,00@eember 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments
The Company considers all highly liquid investmenith a maturity of three months or less when pasg to be cash equivalents.

Short-term investments consist principally of higrality debt instruments with maturities generéigtween one and twelve months and are
carried at fair value. These investments are tylgishort-term in nature and therefore bear mininigX.

Management determines the appropriate classificatii@ebt securities at the time of purchase aadaleates such designation as of each
balance sheet date. At December 31, 1998, allstshirities were classified as available-for-sakgenrstatement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 115 "Accounting for Certain Investtaém Debt and Equity Securities". Securities dfees$ as available-for-sale are reported
at fair market value with the related unrealizeshgand losses included in retained earnings. Reljains and losses and declines in value
judged to be oth-than-temporary on available-for-sale securitiesiacluded in other income and expenses. The ¢astaurities sold is
based on the specific identification method.
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INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONT INUED)

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash accouhtsaney market funds. Short-term investments 6{%25,000 and $46,711,000 at
December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively, conkiavestments in taxexempt market auction rate preferred municipal BoRair values ai
based on quoted market prices. The amount of unegldain or loss was not significant for the yearded December 31, 1998 and 1997.
Gross realized gains and losses for the years dbdeember 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996 were not sigmific

Foreign Exchange Contracts

The Company may enter into foreign currency fornexdhange contracts to hedge certain of its foreigrency transaction, translation, and
re-measurement exposures. The Company's accoyndiicies for some of these instruments are basati@Company's designation of such
instruments as hedging transactions. Instrumeritdesignated as a hedge transaction will be "matdadarket” at the end of each
accounting period. The criteria the Company usesldgignating an instrument as a hedge includet@féness in exposure reduction and
one-to-one matching of the derivative financiatinment to the underlying transaction being hed@ains and losses on foreign currency
forward exchange contracts that are designatecttiective as hedges of existing transactions aregmized in income in the same period as
losses and gains on the underlying transactioneeaognized and generally offset.

During fiscal 1998, the Company entered into yemoteinated foreign currency forward exchange cotdrecchedge anticipated yen
denominated sales. The Company has not desigriatsd toreign currency forward contracts as hedgesé#ictions; therefore, the contracts
have been "marked to market." No foreign curreraytiacts were entered into in fiscal 1997 or 1996.

As of December 31, 1998, the Company had foreigreoay forward exchange contracts outstanding démated in Japanese yen for
approximately $11,592,000. The contracts expirgaous dates through the third quarter of 1999isical 1998, the Company has recorded
transaction losses related to these contracts®f,$80. The carrying amount and fair value of thetiacts as of December 31, 1998 were
($894,000) and ($894,000), respectively.

While the contract amounts provide one measurbefblume of the transactions outstanding at Deeer@b, 1998, they do not represent
amount of the Company's exposure to credit risle Thmpany's exposure to credit risk (arising frampossible inability of the counter-
parties to meet the terms of their contracts) isegally limited to the amount, if any, by which tbeunter-parties' obligations exceed the
obligations of the Company.

Inventories

Inventories for systems and components are statie sgower of standard cost (which approximatesalcost on a first-in, first-out basis) or
market. Inventories consist of the following:

DECEMBER 31,

(IN THOUSANDS)
Raw materials........ $6,907 $8,784
Work-in-progress... ... 11,653 18,756
Finished goods..........ccccoeviieeiiiiiincene ... 3542 8,375

$22,102 $35,915

Equipment and Leasehold Improvements

Equipment and leasehold improvements are carriedsitless allowances for accumulated depreciatmzhamortization. Gains and losses on
dispositions are reflected in the statements afrime.
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Depreciation is computed using the straight-linelrod over the estimated useful lives of the assdigh are generally three to seven years
for machinery and equipment. Amortization of leaddhimprovements is computed using the shortehefremaining terms of the leases or
the estimated economic useful lives of the improsets.

Intangible Assets
The Company amortizes intangible assets on a btrlige basis over the estimated useful lives, Whigmge from two to seven years.
Comprehensive Income

As of January 1, 1998, the Company adopted StateNwrl 30, "Reporting Comprehensive Income" ("SHS8"). SFAS 130 establishes
new rules for the reporting and display of compnredive income and its components; however, the amlopf SFAS 130 had no impact on
the Company's net income or shareholders' equitSSL30 requires unrealized gains or losses oCtmepany's available-for-sale securities
and the foreign currency translation adjustmentgckvprior to the adoption were reported separdteshareholders' equity, to be included in
other comprehensive income. Prior year financetieshents have been reclassified to conform toetheirements of SFAS 130.

As of December 31, 1998, the $122,000 balance mfraalated other comprehensive income was compesgrely of accumulated foreign
currency translation adjustments. No income tagatfifias been recorded related to the compreheinsiome. There was no accumulated
other comprehensive income as of December 31, @92996.

Employee Stock Plans

The Company accounts for its stock option plansiememployee stock purchase plan in accordandepvivisions of the Accounting
Principles Board's Opinion No. 25 (APB 25), "Accting For Stock Issued to Employees." In 1995, tASB released the Statement of
Financial Accounting Standard No. 123 ("SFAS 123Aicounting for Stock Based Compensation.” SFAS fivides an alternative to
APB 25 and is effective for fiscal years beginnafter December 15, 1995. The Company is contintoreccount for its employee stock
plans in accordance with the provisions of APB2&der APB 25, because the exercise prices of thegaay's stock options equal the
market prices of the underlying stock on the déigrant, no compensation expense is recognized.

Financial Presentation
Certain prior year amounts on the Consolidatedri@ Statements have been reclassified to confortine 1998 presentation.
Net income per sha

In 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards BoaFd\GEB") issued Statement No. 128, "Earnings per&h@SFAS 128"). SFAS 128
replaced the calculation of primary and fully déddtearnings per share with basic and diluted egsrer share. Unlike primary earnings per
share, basic earnings per share excludes anywéiletiects of options, warrants and convertibleigées. Diluted earnings per share is very
similar to the previously reported fully dilutedreigs per share.
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The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted earnings per share:

1998 1997 1996

(IN THOUSANDS)
Numerator:
Income (loss) from continuing operations......... .. $ (581) $12,497 $4,973
Income from discontinued operations, net of
applicable income taxes............coceee.n. ... 1,005

Net iNCOME........ccovvevirieeiieeiiee e, .. $ 424 $12,497 $4,973

Numerator for basic earnings per share -- income

available to common stockholders.............. 424 12,497 4,973
Effect of dilutive securities:

6 1/2% convertible notes(1)..........ccveeee. -- 1,911

Numerator for diluted earnings per share -- incom e
available to common stockholders after assumed
CONVEISIONS......vvveiiieeeiieeiree i, .. $ 424 $14,408 $4,973

Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per

share -- weighted-average shares.............. ... 12,052 12,514 12,311
Effect of dilutive securities:

Employee stock options............ccocueeee. .. 302 527 590

6 1/2% convertible notes(1)..........cc.veee.. - 2,344 --
Dilutive potential common shares................. .. 302 2871 590

Denominator for diluted earnings per
share -- adjusted weighted-average shares and
assumed CONVErSIONS..........eeeeeeiueeeeenne ... 12,354 15,385 12,901

(1) Diluted EPS for the twelve-month period endext&nber 31, 1998 excludes "as converted" treatoféhe Convertible Notes as their
inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principatjuiees management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amourdss#ts and liabilities and disclosure of contingesets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amountsveimge and expenses during the reporting periodighcesults inevitably will differ from
those estimates, and such differences may be mlaiethe financial statements.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Effective January 1, 1998, the Company adopted®iamt of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13is¢@sures about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information" ("SFAS 131'HAS 131 establishes standards for the way thaigabmpanies report information ab
operating segments in annual financial statemerdgequires that those companies report selectechiation about operating segments in
interim financial reports. SFAS 131 also estabksiiandards for related disclosures about produntiservices, geographic areas, and major
customers. The adoption of SFAS 131 will have np&nt on the Company's consolidated results of ¢ipes financial position or cash

flows (see Note 11).

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@@ssued Statement of Financial Accounting Stadsldlo. 133, "Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" (&% 133"). SFAS 133 provides a comprehensive andistamt standard for the
recognition and measurement of derivatives andihgdartivities. SFAS 133 is effective for fiscalaye beginning after June 15, 1999 and
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Company believes that the adoption of SFAS 133matlhave a significant impact on the Company'sobdated results of operations,
financial position or cash flows.

3. CONCENTRATIONS
Credit Risk and Significant Customers

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@npany to significant concentrations of credik isnsist of cash equivalents, short-term
investments, accounts receivable and foreign exgghéorward contracts. The Company generally inviégstsxcess cash in money market
funds and in market auction rate preferred munidipads, which have contracted maturities generxaitiiin one year. By policy, the
Company's investments in commercial paper, ceatdic of deposit, Eurodollar time deposits, or bemkeceptances are rated A1/P1 or be
Investments in tax exempt or tax advantaged insgnisj such as variable rate municipal bonds aeel rator better. To date, the Company
not incurred losses related to these investments.

Historically, a significant portion of the Compasiyevenues in any particular period have beerbattible to sales to a limited number of
customers. The Company performs credit evaluatibits customers' financial conditions and requiteposits on system orders but does not
generally require collateral or other security upysort customer receivables. The Company's lamesbmers purchase disk-sputtering
systems and change from period to period as thindisk fabrication facilities are built or expante

Products

Disk sputtering equipment contributed a significaottion of the Company's revenues and profits9ia8l The Company expects that its
ability to maintain or expand its current levelsge¥enues and profits in the future will dependnufie success in enhancing its existing
systems and developing and manufacturing competitisk sputtering equipment and its success inldpirg other products such as flat
panel display equipment, electron beam processjnpment and photonics devices.

Markets

The market for the Company's products is charasdrby rapid technological developments, evolvirduistry standards, changes in custc
requirements, new product introductions and enharo¢s. The market for disk sputtering systemsiiaamily dependent upon the decisior

a prospective customer to replace obsolete equipardn increase manufacturing capacity by upgmradinexpanding existing manufacturing
facilities or constructing new manufacturing faas, all of which typically involve a significasapital commitment. In addition, the
cyclicality of the disk drive industry, among otHactors, may cause prospective customers to postgecisions regarding major capital
expenditures, including purchases of the Compaygtems.

Materials

In certain instances, the Company is dependent apmte supplier or a limited number of suppliershas qualified only a single or limited
number of suppliers, for certain complex componentsub-assemblies utilized in its products. Inigoid, the Company makes extensive use
of suppliers serving the semiconductor equipmesinass, and such suppliers may choose to giveitgrtortheir semiconductor equipment
customers that are much larger than the Company pAsionged inability to obtain adequate delivecesid require the Company to pay
more for inventory, parts and other supplies, sdteknative sources of supply, delay its abilityskdp its products and damage relationships
with current and prospective customers. Any sudayder damage could have a material adverse affethe Company's business, financial
condition and results of operations.
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Inventories

Given the volatility of the market, the Company msknventory provisions for potentially excess ahdolete inventory based on backlog
forecasted demand. However, such backlog demasubjsct to revisions, cancellations, and reschegul\ctual demand will inevitably
differ from such anticipated demand, and such difiees may have a material effect on the finast&ements.

Competition

The Company experiences intense competition wodewi the disk equipment business from two prinagpanpetitors, each of which has
substantially greater financial, technical, mankgtimanufacturing and other resources than the @oyn@here can be no assurance that the
Company's competitors will not develop enhancementsr future generations of, competitive produhes will offer superior price or
performance features or that new competitors waitlanter the Company's markets and develop sudcmerl products. Because of these
competitive factors, there can be no assuranceitba@ompany will be able to compete successfualhe future. Increased competitive
pressure could cause the Company to lower prigessfproducts, thereby adversely affecting the @any's business, financial condition and
results of operations.

4. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In the first quarter of 1995, the Company adoptéatiaal plan to discontinue the operations of itghhvision business. Accordingly, the
consolidated statements of operations and casls flomall periods presented reflect the night \isiperations as discontinued. In the second
quarter of 1995, the Company sold its night vidioisiness to Litton Systems, Inc. for cash of $7,6a®

The Company established a reserve of $2,622,00okis associated with the sale. The significantpmments of this charge included
$795,000 for warranty costs, $680,000 for estimardronmental remediation costs associated wetsite of the night vision operations,
and $476,000 for write-offs of certain prepaid engEs and other assets. Remediation efforts wergpleted in 1997. Warranty on alll
products shipped by the business expired in Novert®@7. In the first quarter of 1998, the remainiagerve of $794,000 associated with
closing the business was reversed. In the secomdegof 1998, Litton reimbursed the Company fod&D00 in excess warranty reserves
transferred at the time of the sale. Both of th@seunts are reflected as income from discontinyedladions, net of applicable income taxes.

5. EQUITY INVESTMENTS
601 California Avenue LLC

In the third quarter of 1995, the Company enten¢d & Limited Liability Company Operating Agreemétihe Operating Agreement"), whi
expires December 31, 2015, with 601 California AvehL C (the "LLC"), a California limited liabilitgompany formed and owned by the
Company and certain shareholders of the Comparg/LLK was formed for the purpose of removing thidings, remediation and the
development of an office building at the site af thompany's discontinued night vision business"@ie"). Under the Operating Agreeme
the Company transferred its leasehold interediénSite in exchange for a preferred share in th@é.LThe Company is accounting for the
investment under the cost method and has recotsi@d/estment in the LLC at approximately $2,430,08hich represents the Company's
historical carrying value of the leasehold inteiaghe Site, which the Company believes is leas tie net realizable value. The Company
and the LLC have cross-indemnified each other édemptial environmental claims relating to acts ptidand subsequent to the transfer of the
Site, respectively. The Company is not requiredaatribute additional capital to the LLC. The preéel share in the LLC accrues an annual
cumulative preferred dividend of $390,000.
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During 1996, the buildings on the Site were remediaclosed and demolished, and the LLC formedra y@nture with Stanford ("Stanford
JV") to develop the property. Between 1996 and 18@8Stanford JV completed leasing and redevelopwofehe entire project, and the
project was occupied in August 1998. In the foutlarter of 1998, the Company received $650,000 ftwrl LC, which represented a
portion of the accumulated dividend due on thegrefl share, This amount has been included in agtheme and expense. As of December
31, 1998 the Company's preferred share in the LacCadditional accumulated dividends due of $687y@0igh had not yet been paid. The
terms of the Company's preferred share requireathatcumulated dividends on the preferred sharpaid to the Company prior to the LLC
making any distributions to its other members.

Chorus Corporation

In 1993, the Company sold its MBE operations amglied 20% of the outstanding capital stock of @lspa manufacturer of MBE products.
In the third quarter of 1995, the Company sol®@%b6 investment interest in Chorus, which repregseht250,000 shares of Chorus stock t
individual for $500,000 in cash and a note for 88,800. This note was paid in full during 1998. Trecember 31, 1997 note receivable
reserve of approximately $395,000 represents tferréel gain under the cost-recovery method.

IMAT Inc.

On June 27, 1997, the Company entered into an mgmtenith Matsubo to form a joint venture respolestbr the sales and service of
Intevac's flat panel display equipment in Japanahdr Asian countries. The Company invested $485{0r 49% of the voting stock of the
joint venture. The joint venture is being accourftadunder the equity method. Gains and losseseel® the Company's share of the j
venture are reflected in other income and expereteon the consolidated statements of income. Tdmpany's equity in the net loss of
IMAT, Inc. was $217,000 and $89,000 in 1998 and7198spectively. No revenues have been recognaeshfpments to IMAT in 1998 or
1997. As of December 31, 1998, the Company hadwetg@ayments of $1,859,000 for customer advarmoes fMAT. In February of 1999,
the Company entered into an agreement to guaraptéz 14,700,000 Yen of IMAT's debt.

6. LINE OF CREDIT

In April 1997, the Company entered into a Busirlesan Agreement with a bank which provides for altof $10.0 million in available
borrowings. This agreement replaced the Companmigs lme of credit. The agreement, as amendeftyria revolving line of credit, which is
available until May 1, 1999, when the outstanding@pal will be payable. The line of credit bearterest, at the option of the Company, at
the prime rate, or the London Interbank OfferingeREALIBOR") plus 175 basis points (7.75% as of Baber 31, 1998). Interest on
outstanding advances is due monthly. For LIBOR adea the interest period can be one, three or sixtm. In the event of default, interest
on the outstanding loan increases to 4.00% abavetarest rate applicable immediately prior todeéault. The Company is required to
maintain certain financial conditions includingtrégions on its ability to pay any dividends.

As of December 31, 1998, the Company had secwsel 936,000 note related to the purchase of Cathitth a stand-by letter of credit
under its Business Loan Agreement. No additionaluams were outstanding under the agreement at Dearedd, 1998.
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7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments

The Company leases certain facilities under norce&lable operating leases that expire at variousdgiop to 2002. The facility leases require
the Company to pay for all normal maintenance cddts lease for the primary facility in Santa Clareludes an option to extend the lease
for an additional five-year period.

Future minimum rental payments under these lead@s@mber 31, 1998 are as follows (in thousands):

Gross rental expense was approximately $2,977$0@92,000 and $1,166,000 for the years ended Demedi, 1998, 1997, and 1996,
respectively. Offsetting rental expense for theéqur ending December 31, 1998 and 1997 was suhbiees@e of $238,000 and $69,000,
respectively.

Contingencies

In August 1993, Rockwell International Corporati{@Rockwell") sued the Federal government alleginfgingement of certain patent rights
with respect to the contracts the Federal governimas had with a number of companies, includingvat. The Federal government has
notified the Company that it may be liable in coctien with contracts for certain products from tbempany's discontinued night vision
business. In the first quarter of 1997, Rockweititent in suit was held invalid. Rockwell appealeat decision, and in the second quarter of
1998, the appellate court reversed the holdingdlidity by the lower court and referred the miaktack to the lower court for trial.

In January 1999, a settlement was negotiated bettheeFederal government and Rockwell and apprbyedtie court. Under the settlement,
all of Intevac's exposure related to governmergssal eliminated. Rockwell has not pursued anyndaielated to non-governmental sales of
the products in question.

In connection with the 1997 purchase of RPC, them@any is subject to making contingent payments lequzb% of the future earnings of
RPC. The total of these contingent payments igdidhio approximately $7.7 million. No payments weoe in 1998.

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

In 1991, the Company established a defined cortabuetirement plan with 401(k) plan features. Tin covers all United States
employees eighteen years and older. Employees ralig nontributions by a percentage reduction irr thedaries, not to exceed the
statutorily prescribed annual limit. The Companydmaontributions of $204,000, $174,000 and $109f6bthe years ended December 31,
1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively. Administrativpemses relating to the plan are insignificant.

9. LONG-TERM DEBT

In 1996, the Company issued notes related to thehpge of Cathode. The notes bear interest at 5ca8fpounded monthly and payable
quarterly. Principal payments on the note are ntpdeterly based on unit sales of the Cathode gpsttaces. Any remaining balance on the
notes on January 24, 2001 is due in full regarddésputter source sales.
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10. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

During the first quarter of 1997, the Company coetgrdl an offering of $57.5 million of its 6 1/2% Gentible Subordinated Notes, which
mature on March 1, 2004. Interest is payable totite holders on each March 1st and Septembefismotes are convertible into shares of
the Company's common stock at $20.625 per shahe aioteholder's option. Expenses associated hatloffering of approximately $2.3
million have been deferred. Such expenses are lagnugtized to interest expense over the term ohdtes.

11. SEGMENT REPORTING
Segment Description

Intevac, Inc. has two reportable segments: equipirugsh photonics. The Company's equipment busireisscomplex capital equipment used
in the manufacturing of thin-film disks, flat pardéplays, shrink wrap films and for in-line stesdition. The Company's photonics business is
developing products utilizing electron sources figxmit highly sensitive detection in the short-wanfrared spectrum.

Included in corporate activities are general caapoexpenses, elimination of inter-segment reventhesquity in net loss of equity investee
(see Note 5) and amortization expenses relatedrtain intangible assets. Assets of corporate iievinclude unallocated cash and short-
term investments, deferred income taxes and cdrt&ingibles and other assets.

Segment Profit or Loss and Segment Assets

The Company evaluates performance and allocateanass based on profit or loss from operationsredftterest, other income and expense
and income taxes. The accounting policies of tpenable segments are the same as those desaribieel Summary of significant accounting
policies.

Business Segment Net Revenues

1998 1997 1996

(IN THOUSANDS)

Equipment
Trade...oooeeeiee e .. $90,257 $129,559 $86,428
Inter-segment.........ccccveveeeevieeeeeennnnnn. . 354 65 --
90,611 129,624 86,428
Photonics
Trade......ccoeevviieeieeec e .. 5,718 3,648 1,804
Corporate activitieS............ooovvvevevvinnnns .. (354) (65)
Total.eeeeieeieeee e .. $95,975 $133,207 $88,232
Business Segment Profit & Loss
1998 1997 1996
(IN THOUSANDS)
Equipment(1)......cccccevveevieeeiieeciieeeenn .. $2,257 $22,501 $18,036
PhOtONICS. ...ccoiiiiiiieiiiiee e .. (125) (363) (127)
Corporate activities...........occceeeriiieeennne .. (2,584) (2,600) (7,980)
Operating income (10SS)........cccccvvvveveeeennnn. .. (452) 19,538 9,929
Interest eXPense........occcuveeeeniveeeeieinnen. .. (4,187) (3,581) (175)
Interest iNCOMe..........ocoveeeiniiieeenien. .. 2,832 2,270 662
Other income and expense, net.............cc...e... . 344 998 907

Income (loss) from continuing operations before
INCOME taXeS.....ccocveiiiiiiiieiiieecieae .. $(1,463) $19,225 $11,323

(1) Includes restructuring charge of $1,088 in 1998
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Business Segment Assets

1998 1997 1996

(IN THOUSANDS)
EQUIPMENt.......ccovieiiieeiiie e . $41,825 $57,726 $52,629
Photonics..........ccceeeee . 5,032 2,912 2,396
Corporate activities 76,119 87,156 13,060

Total assets........cccvveevvvreeneens . $122,976 $147,794 $68,085

Business Segment Property, Plant & Equipment

ADDITIONS 1998 1997 1996
(IN THOUSANDS)
Equipment(1)......cccooeeeeiiiiiiieeieeeenn .$ 1734 $ 5499 $5,176
Photonics........ccccvvvveeeenn. . 1,015 406 1,261

Corporate activities 149 754 511

Total additions.............ccccuveeeenn. . $2898 $ 6,659 $6,948

(1) Includes inventory transferred to fixed ass$t$567 and $3,094 in 1997 and 1996, respectively.

DEPRECIATION 1998 1997 1996
(IN THOUSANDS)
Equipment(1)......ccccoeveevieeiiieeciieeenenn . $ 3364 $ 2108 $1,020
Photonics........cccccvveveennn. . 328 301 268

Corporate activities 308 179 66

Total depreciation....................... . $ 4000 $ 2,588 $1,354

(1) Excludes amortization related to assets letsedhird party of $1,244 in 1998.
Geographic Area Net Trade Revenues

1998 1997 1996

(IN THOUSANDS)

United States . $44,983 $48,472 $51,860
Far East............ . 49,050 84,729 36,315
Europe.............. . 391 3 46
Rest of World 1,551 3 11

Total revenues...........ccecevennee.. . $95,975 $133,207 $88,232

Export sales in 1996 do not include systems puethay domestic corporations, but delivered to maéipnal locations. These shipments
accounted for approximately 28% of revenue in 1996.

Major Customers

In each year presented, 3 customers have eachrdeddor more than 10% of the Company's net reverliee Company's largest customers
change from period to period.
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12. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

The Company's Articles of Incorporation authoriz8900,000 shares of Preferred Stock. The BoaRirettors has the authority to issue
Preferred Stock in one or more series and to fixatice, rights, preferences, privileges and retstris thereof, including dividend rights,
dividend rates, conversion rights, voting rightsnts of redemption, redemption prices, liquidatoeferences and the number of shares
constituting any series or the designation of serfes, without further vote or action by the shatéers.

Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plans

The Board of Directors approved the 1991 Stock @y8tock Issuance Plan (the "1991 Plan™) in 19% maximum number of shares that
may be issued over the term of the 1991 Plan 862667 shares.

The 1991 Plan is divided into two separate comptaéine Option Grant Program and the Stock IssuBnagram. Under the Option Grant
Program, the Company may grant either incentivekstptions or nonqualified options or implementcitappreciation rights provisions at
the discretion of the Board of Directors. Exercikh option price, and other terms are determibgdhe Board of Directors, but the option
price shall not be less than 85% and 100% of tinerfarket value for nonqualified options and inéeaistock options, respectively, as
determined by the Board of Directors. Options gegdninder the 1991 Stock Option/Stock Issuance &kuimmmediately exercisable,
however, unexercised options and shares purchagsedthe exercise of the options are subject tangsitver a five-year period. Shares that
are not vested may be repurchased by the Comphaye$totaling 7,169, 10,002 and 21,750 were sttgaepurchase at December 31,
1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

In 1995, the Board of Directors approved adoptibfi)dhe 1995 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plae (1895 Plan") under which employees,
non-employee directors and consultants may be gulastock options to purchase stock or issued sldstsck at not less than 85% of fair
market value on the grant/issuance date; anch@i)BEmployee Stock Purchase Plan. The 1995 Plamasded in 1998, serves as the
successor equity incentive program to the Compd$@4 Plan. Upon adoption of the 1995 Plan, alteshavailable for issuance under the
1991 Plan were transferred to the 1995 Plan. A3emember 31, 1998, 1,867,158 shares of common stec&uthorized for future issuance
under the 1995 Plan. Options granted under the P#®@%are exercisable upon vesting and generadiiyoxeer a five-year period. Options
currently expire no later than ten years from thgedf grant.

Options to purchase 481,551, 374,688 and 167,4&&shvere vested at December 31, 1998, 1997 ar& d3pectively.

In the third quarter of 1998, the Company appraaeexchange program that offered to each empldyeneld stock options granted
between August 19, 1996 and July 31, 1998, the rppidy to exchange their options for newly granséack options. The new option would
be for the same number of shares as originallytgdarbut the vesting period would start on the tth@ynew option was granted. This offer
was open for a two-week period of time. The exerpisce of the new option was set at the fair mavkéue of Intevac common stock on the
date each employee notified the Company of thaiepiance of the exchange offer during the periadv Ntock options were granted for a
total of 500,700 shares of common stock. The netooprices ranged from $6.250 to $8.375.

Pro forma information regarding net income and i@sper share is required by SFAS 123, which agaires that the information be
determined as if the Company has accounted fenifgsloyee stock options granted subsequent to DezreBdh 1994 under the fair value
method of this Statement. The fair value for thesions was estimated at the date of grant usiBigek-Scholes multiple option pricing
model with the following weighted average assumitor 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively: risk-freerest rates of 4.66%, 5.46% and
5.73%; dividend yields of 0.0%, 0.0% and 0.0%; tititg factors of the expected market
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price of the Company's common stock of 0.80, 0 @67; and a weighted-average expected lifeebfition of 0.25, 0.25 and 0.25 years
beyond each respective vesting period.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was degyatiofor use in estimating the fair value of tradptions which have no vesting
restrictions and are fully transferable. In addifioption models require the input of highly sulijezassumptions including the expected
stock price volatility. Because the Company's erygdostock options have characteristics signifigadifferent from those of traded options,
and because changes in the subjective assumptonsaterially affect the fair value estimate, imagement's opinion, the existing models
do not necessarily provide a reliable single measfithe fair value of its employee stock options.

Under the 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, asdeden 1997, (the "ESPP"), the Company is autkdrip issue up to 500,000 shares of
common stock to participating employees. Undettéhes of the ESPP, employees can choose to hate1f)96 of their annual base earnii
withheld to purchase the Company's common stoc&.pihichase price of the stock is 85% of the lovieh® subscription date fair market
value and the purchase date fair market value. éyprately 80% of eligible employees have partiaggbin the ESPP. Under the ESPP, the
Company sold 150,819, 142,735 and 62,467 sham®pboyees in 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectivelyofA3ecember 31, 1998, 143,979
shares remained reserved for issuance under the.H3e Company does not recognize compensationralastd to employee purchase
rights under the Plan. To comply with the pro fonmaporting requirements of FAS 123, compensatia@t isoestimated for the fair value of
the employees' purchase rights using the Black{8shmodel with the following assumptions for thoiggts granted in 1998, 1997 and 1996,
respectively: risk-free interest rates of 4.68%066 and 5.77%; dividend yield of 0.0%, 0.0% and®).@xpected volatility of 0.80, 0.70 and
0.67; and an expected life of 1.98 years, 0.78syand 1.63 years (the offering period ends Jarkr2000 for all subscription periods
beginning in 1998 or 1999). The weighted averagevédue of those purchase rights granted in 19987 and 1996 were $5.37, $6.48 and
$5.57, respectively.

Had compensation cost for the Company's stock-besegensation plans been determined based onithafiae at the grant dates for
awards under those plans consistent with the meth&FAS 123, the Company's net income and earmiagshare would have been reduced
to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

1998 1997 1996
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)
Pro forma net income (10SS)........cccccvevnennne .. $(1,491)  $10,742 $3,797
Pro forma earnings (loss) per share
BaSiC.....oeviiiiiiieiiec e ... $(0.12) $ 086 $0.31
Diluted......ccveiiiieiiieie e ... $(0.12) $ 082 $0.30

Because SFAS 123 is applicable only to optionstgrhaubsequent to December 31, 1994, its pro feffieat will not be fully reflected until
1999.
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A summary of the Company's stock option activity aslated information for the years ended Decerstidollows:

1998 1997 1996
WEI GHTED- WEIGHTED- WEIGHT ED-
AV ERAGE AVERAGE AVERA GE
EXE RCISE EXERCISE EXERCI SE
OPTIONS P RICE OPTIONS PRICE OPTIONS PRIC E

Outstanding -- beginning of

1,573,713 $ 8.77 1,265,942 $7.91 931,637 $4.2 5

... 713,700 7.16 448,000 12.38 585,000 12.1 3

..... (39,350) 322  (37,728) 291 (138,444) 3.1 6

(648,301) 1 1.90 (102,501) 16.05 (112,251) 5.4 3

Outstanding -- end of year........ 1,599,762 6.92 1,573,713 877 1,265,942 7.9 1
Exercisable at end of year........ 715,072 $ 5.98 748,378 $5.79 667,942 $4.4 0

Weighted-average fair value of
options granted during the

Vel .uiiiiiieeeiieeiieeens $ 3.86 $6.14 $5.8 7

OUTSTANDING AND EXERCISABLE BY PRICE RANGE AS OF DE CEMBER 31, 1998

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE
NUMBER WEIGHTED NUMBER
OUTSTANDING  AVERAGE EXERCISABLE
AS OF REMAINING WEIGHTED AS OF WEIGHTED
RANGE OF DECEMBER 31, CONTRACTUAL AVERAGE DECEMBER 31, AVERAGE
EXERCISE PRICES 1998 LIFE EXE RCISE PRICE 1998 EXERCISE PRICE
$0.150-$2.175.. 179,871 5.20yrs $1.50 179,871 $1.50
$6.000 - $6.000.. 388,491 6.61yrs $6.00 385,991 $6.00
$6.250 - $6.625.. 406,600 9.68 yrs $6.53 0 $0.00
$6.750 - $7.625.. 346,700 7.75yrs $7.48 93,332 $7.61
$7.688 - $14.313.. 193,600 9.43yrs $8.45 9,980 $11.30
$15.125 - $21.250.. 84,500 7.46 yrs $18.68 45,898 $18.94
$0.150 - $21.250.. 1,599,762 7.86 yrs $6.92 715,072 $5.98

13. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of theofwlihg (in thousands):

YEARS EN DED DECEMBER 31,
1998 1997 1996
Federal:
CUITeNt .., $7,640 $5,761
Deferred (2,274) (292)
5,366 5,469
State:
CUITeNt. ..o, 224 1,655 1,362
Deferred.........ccocvveeeinnnnnnn. (216) (293) (481)
8 1,362 881
Total..ooovcieeeeeie, $ (387) $6,728 $6,350

The tax benefits associated with exercises of nalifipd stock options and disqualifying dispositsoof stock acquired through the incentive
stock option and employee stock purchase plansestiixes currently payable for 1998, 1997 and E&9¢hown above by $120,000,
$273,000 and $690,000, respectively. Such berefteredited to additional paid-in capital wherlizeal.
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettemmporary differences between the carrying amoohassets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for indarmpurposes. Significant components of the Comigadsferred tax assets computed in
accordance with SFAS 109 are as follows (in thodspan

DECEMBER 31,

1998 1997
Deferred tax assets:
Discontinued operations reserve.................. $ - $ 329
Vacation accrual........ccccceevvviiiininnnnns 430 466
Wwarranty reserve........ccccccoevevinnciinnnens 838 1,067
Bad debt reserve............coecevvvviineenens 678 639
Inventory valuation..........cccccceeeeeevnnns 4,122 3,435
AMT credit carry-forward............ccccoe..... 669 --
Other.....oooiiiiiiiieieceee e, 1,657 1,072
Total deferred tax assets................ $8,394 $7,008
Deferred tax liabilities:
Purchased technology.............cccccecernne. $ 59 $ 254
(O 1= SR 122 178
Total deferred tax liabilities........... $ 181 $ 432
Net deferred tax assets............ccocueeeveenns $8,213 $6,576

A reconciliation of the income tax provision at fleeleral statutory rate of 35% to the income tawjmion at the effective tax rate is as
follows (in thousands):

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

Income taxes computed at the federal statutory rate ... $ 14 $6,729 $3,963
State taxes (net of federal benefit)..............~ . 5 885 573
Acquired in-process research and development....... ... -- - 2,042
Foreign Sales Corporation benefit........c..........~ .. (210) (840) (525)
Tax exempt iNCOMEe......ccovvieveiviiieaeeiceeee (788) (700) (56)
Goodwill amortization........ccccoevvvvveevcceeees L 419 463 335
Other. i 173 191 18
Totalieeiieieee e $(387) $6,728 $6,350

14. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COST SHARING AGREEMERST

The Company entered into an agreement with a Japamempany to perform best efforts joint reseanthdevelopment work. The nature of
the project is to develop a glass coating machorigetused in the production of flat panel displayse Company was funded for one-half of
the actual costs of the project up to a ceilin§®#50,000. At December 31, 1998, the Company éegived $9,050,000 under the contract.
Qualifying costs of approximately $1,706,000, $8,9D0 and $2,452,000 for the years ended Decenihdr938, 1997, and 1996,
respectively, were incurred on this project, resglin offsets against research and developmens cdsapproximately $1,410,000,
$1,300,000 and $1,347,000 in 1998, 1997 and 1@3pectively. As of December 31, 1998, $8,160,00B®fdvance had been applied to
qualifying costs.

Upon completion of the research and developmenkwbsuccessful, each party will receive certaiamafacturing and marketing rights for
separate regions of the world. The agreement al$®for certain
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royalty payments by each party to the other pdrdged on production and sales. The royalty ratebeib% for each party.
15. RESTRUCTURING

On March 2, 1998, as a result of weak demand $aequipment products, the Company's managementeatlagplan to reduce expenses. The
expense reduction plan included a reduction ind@ft90 employees out of the Company's staff ofremhand regular personnel. The
reductions took place at the Company's faciliteSanta Clara, CA; Los Gatos, CA; Rocklin, CA; drawan. Additionally, the Company
relocated its RTP Operation from Rocklin to the @amy's Santa Clara headquarters and closed thdifRtadtlity.

In the first quarter of 1998, the Company incurae@structuring charge of $1,164,000 related tespense reduction plan. The significant
components of this charge include $290,000 forwle®f the Rocklin facility, $462,000 for the baterof the rent due on the lease for such
facility and $392,000 for employee severance cddtssure of the facility was completed in the setgoarter of 1998.

On August 17, 1998, as a result of continued wesakahd for its equipment products, the Company'sagement implemented a further
reduction in force of 27 employees out of the Conymstaff of contract and regular personnel. ®Eukictions took place at the Company's
facilities in Santa Clara, CA; Hayward, CA; Singeggocand Taiwan. In the third quarter of 1998, tlempany incurred a restructuring charge
of $71,000 related to severance costs for the tffleemployees.

As of December 31, 1998, of the foregoing amouwapproximately $406,000 in termination benefits hadn paid out to affected employees,
$370,000 had been spent related to the relocafitvedR TP Operation, the closure of the Rocklinlfigcand rent on the lease on such faci
and $312,000 remained in other accrued liabilitgating to the balance of the rent due on theeledshe Rocklin facility. In the fourth
quarter of 1998, $147,000 of the restructuringmesavas reversed due to lower than expected costsred on the closure of the Rocklin
facility.

16. QUARTERLY CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONSNAUDITED)

THREE MONTHS ENDED

MARCH 28, JUNE 27, SEPTEMBER 26, DECEMBER 31,
1998 1998 1998 1998
(INTH OUSANDS, EXCEPT FOR PER SHARE DATA)

Net sales.........cccevverueenne. $34,235 $35,801 $14,657 $11,282
Gross profit......cccceveeeennnnn. 10,661 9,043 3,964 590
Net income (l10SS)........cevveeens 2,262 2,217 (463) (3,592)
Basic earnings per share........... $ 0.19 $ 0.18 $(0.04) $ (0.30)
Diluted earnings per share......... 0.18 0.18 (0.04) (0.30)

THREE MONTHS ENDED

MARCH 29, JUNE 28, SEPTEMBER 27, DECEMBER 31,
1997 1997 1997 1997
(INTH OUSANDS, EXCEPT FOR PER SHARE DATA)

Net sales......cccccveevveennnn. $31,141 $33,763 $30,350 $37,953
Gross profit........ccccceeeneen. 10,144 10,141 9,164 12,503
Netincome.........ccccceevunene. 3,416 3,577 1,931 3,573
Basic earnings per share........... $ 0.27 $ 0.29 $ 0.15 $ 0.29
Diluted earnings per share......... 0.26 0.26 0.15 0.27
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17. SUBSEQUENT EVENT (UNAUDITED)

On March 5, 1999, Intevac entered into agreemenisihating its lease obligations for the Rocklinility. Under these agreements, the
Company made payments totaling approximately $182,The Company is also required to remove cemaprovements made during the
Company's occupancy of the property. The Compatiguss that the total of the termination paymemid structural remediation costs will
not exceed the restructuring reserve balance.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not Applicable.

PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this item relating e tCompany's directors and nominees and discloslagng to compliance with Section 16
(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is ideldi under the captions "Election of Directors" &@dmpliance with Section 16(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934" in the Companyt{ Statement for the 1999 Annual Meeting of Shatgers and is incorporated herein
by reference. The information required by this iteriating to the Company's executive officers aeg &mployees is included under the
caption "Executive Officers and Directors" undentt4 in

Part | of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is includeter the caption "Executive Compensation and Retlatirmation” in the Company's
Proxy Statement for the 1999 Annual Meeting of 8halders and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this item is includetter the caption "Ownership of Securities" in tl@pany's Proxy Statement for the 1999
Annual Meeting of Shareholders and is incorpordieetin by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

The information required by this item is includetter the caption "Certain Transactions" in the Cany{s Proxy Statement for the 1999
Annual Meeting of Shareholders and is incorporéteetin by reference.

PART IV

ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, A ND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(@) LIST OF DOCUMENTS FILED AS PART OF THIS ANNUAREPORT ON FORM 10-K.
1. The following consolidated financial statemesfténtevac, Inc. are filed in Part I, Item 8 oigiReport on Form 10-K:

Report of Ernst & Young, LLP, Independent Auditors

Consolidated Balance Sheets -- December 31, 199814997

Consolidated Statements of Income and Compreheisieene for the years ended December 31, 1998, 486871996
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equitthfoyears ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yaaded December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme-- Years Ended December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996
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2. Financial Statement Schedules.

The following financial statement schedule of Ir@eyinc. is filed in

Part IV, Item 14(a) of this Annual Report on ForfH:

SCHEDULE Il -- VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

All other schedules have been omitted since theired) information is not present in amounts sudfitito require submission of the schedule

or because the information required is includeth@éconsolidated financial statements or notestber

3. Exhibits

EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

*3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorpo
Registrant
*3.2 Bylaws of the Registrant
***4.2 Indenture, dated as of February 15, 1997
Company and State Street Bank and Trust
California, N.A. as Trustee, including t
Convertible Notes
*10.1 The Registrant's 1991 Stock Option/Stock
*10.2 The Registrant's 1995 Stock Option/Stock
amended
*10.3 The Registrant's Employee Stock Purchase
10.4 Line of Credit Agreement dated April 30,
*10.5 Lease, dated May 26, 1994 regarding the

ration of the

, between the
Company of
he form of the

Issuance Plan
Issuance Plan, as

Plan, as amended
1997 as amended
space located at

3550, 3560, 3570 and 3580 Basset Street Santa Clara,
California, as amended

*10.8 601 California Avenue LLC Limited Liabil ity Operating
Agreement, dated July 28, 1995

*10.9 The Registrant's 401(k) Profit Sharing P lan

*10.11 Stock Sale Agreement, Note Secured by St
and Stock Pledge Agreement by and betwee
Paul Colombo, dated August 24, 1994, as

**10.13 Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Lo

Inc., Lewis Lipton, Dennis Stark, Steve
Inc., dated June 6, 1996
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant
23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independen
24.1 Power of Attorney (see page 47)
27.1 Financial Data Schedule

ock Pledge Agreement
n Intevac, Inc. and
amended

tus Technologies,
Romine and Intevac,

t Auditors

* Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registrati®tatement on Form S-1
(No. 33-97806)

** Previously filed as an exhibit to the RegistmatiStatement on Form S-1

(No. 333-05531)

*** Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registim@t Statement on Form S-3

(No. 333-24275)

(b) REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

No reports on Form-K were filed during the last quarter of the fisgahr covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized, on March 12, 1999.

INTEVAC, INC.

By: /s/ CHARLES B. EDDY |11

Charles B. Eddy, 11
Vi ce President, Finance and
Admi ni stration,
Chief Financial Oficer, Treasurer
and Secretary
(Principal Financial and Accounting
O ficer)

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemsbose signature appears below constitutes amargpNorman H. Pond
and Charles B. Eddy Ill, and each of them, asrhis &nd lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with gower of substitution and
resubstitution, for him and in his name, place stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any dreheendments (including post-effective
amendments) to this Report on Form 10-K, and éotfie same, with all exhibits thereto, and othe&udtents in connection therewith, with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and eacheshf full power and authority to do and
perform each and every act and thing requisitersaogssary to be done in connection therewith, Ipstéuall intents and purposes as he m
or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirgnall that said attorneys-in-fact and agentsgror of them, or their or his substitute or
substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be dongitiye hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
/sl NORMAN H. POND Chairma n of the Board, President and March 12, 1999
Chief E xecutive Officer (Principal
(Norman H. Pond) Executi ve Officer)
/sI CHARLES B. EDDY Il Vice Pr esident, Finance and March 12, 1999
Adminis tration, Chief Financial Officer
(Charles B. Eddy III) Treasur er and Secretary (Principal
Financi al and Accounting Officer)
/s/ ROBERT D. HEMPSTEAD Chief O perating Officer and Director March 12, 1999

(Robert D. Hempstead)

/s/ EDWARD DURBIN Directo

(Edward Durbin)

/s/ DAVID N. LAMBETH Directo

(David N. Lambeth)

/sl H. JOSEPH SMEAD Directo

(H. Joseph Smead)

r March 12, 1999
r March 12, 1999
r March 12, 1999
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SCHEDULE II -- VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
INTEVAC, INC.

ADDITIONS
BALANCE AT ------ BALA
BEGINNING CHARGE D TO COSTS CHARGED TO OTHER DEDUCTIONS- E
DESCRIPTION OF PERIOD  AND EXPENSES ACCOUNTS-DESCRIBE DESCRIBE OF P

(1)
Year ended December 31, 1996:
Deducted from asset
accounts:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts............... $ 460,629 $5 89,712 $ 0 $25900 $1,0
Year ended December 31, 1997:
Deducted from asset
accounts:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts............... $1,024,441 $5 15,473 $25,000(2) $60,314 $1,5
Year ended December 31, 1998:
Deducted from asset
accounts:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts............... $1,504,600 $2 46,038 $ 0 $121,290 $1,6

(1) Typically includes write-offs of amounts deemettollectible.

(2) Balance assumed in the acquisition of R

24,441

04,600

29,348



INDEX TO EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION

*3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorpo
Registrant
*3.2 Bylaws of the Registrant
***4 2 Indenture, dated as of February 15, 1997
Company and State Street Bank and Trust
California, N.A. as Trustee, including t
Convertible Notes
*10.1 The Registrant's 1991 Stock Option/Stock
*10.2 The Registrant's 1995 Stock Option/Stock
amended
*10.3 The Registrant's Employee Stock Purchase
10.4 Line of Credit Agreement dated April 30,
*10.5 Lease, dated May 26, 1994 regarding the
3550, 3560, 3570 and 3580 Basset Street
California, as amended
*10.8 601 California Avenue LLC Limited Liabil

ration of the

, between the
Company of
he form of the

Issuance Plan
Issuance Plan, as

Plan, as amended
1997 as amended
space located at
Santa Clara,

ity Operating

Agreement, dated July 28, 1995
*10.9 The Registrant's 401(k) Profit Sharing P lan
*10.11 Stock Sale Agreement, Note Secured by St ock Pledge Agreement
and Stock Pledge Agreement by and betwee n Intevac, Inc. and
Paul Colombo, dated August 24, 1994, as amended
**10.13 Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Lo tus Technologies,
Inc., Lewis Lipton, Dennis Stark, Steve Romine and Intevac,
Inc., dated June 6, 1996
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant
23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independen t Auditors
24.1 Power of Attorney (see page 47)
27.1 Financial Data Schedule

* Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registratidtatement on Form S-1
(No. 33-97806)

** Previously filed as an exhibit to the RegistmatiStatement on Form S-1

(No. 333-05531)

*** Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registim@t Statement on Form S-3

(No. 335-24275)



EXHIBIT 10.4

Santa Clara Valley Regional
Commercial Banking Office

121 Park Center Plaza, 3rd floor
San Jose, CA 95172

December 15, 1998

Intevac, Inc.
3560 Bassett Street
Santa Clara, CA 95054

Gentlemen:

This letter is to confirm the changes agreed upwéen Wells Fargo Bank, National Association ("Bam@and Intevac, Inc. ("Borrower") to
the terms and conditions of that certain letteeagrent between Bank and Borrower dated as of B0rill997, as amended from time to time
(the "Agreement"). For valuable consideration, ibeeipt and sufficiency or which are hereby ackmaolgkd, Bank and Borrower hereby
agree that the Agreement shall be amended as loweflect said changes.

1. Paragraph V.8.(d) is hereby deleted in its etytjrand the following substituted therefor:
"(d) Maintain profitability on an annual basis, elehined as of each fiscal year end."
2. The following is hereby added to the Agreeman$eaction V.8(e):

"(e) Liquid assets (defined as the aggregate df aad readily marketable securities acceptableattk]Bin amounts at all times in excess of
$40,000,000.00.

3. Except as specifically provided herein, all teramd conditions of the Agreement remain in fultéoand effect, without waiver or
modification. All terms defined in the AgreementBihave the same meaning when used herein. Tités knd the Agreement shall be read
together, as one document.

4. Borrower hereby remakes all representationsaardanties contained in the Agreement and reaffaithsovenants set forth therein.
Borrower further certifies that as of the date ofi®wer's acknowledgment set forth below theretexis default or defined event of default
under the Agreement or any promissory note or athatract, instrument or document executed in cotiore therewith, nor any condition, :
or event



Intevac, Inc.
December 15, 1998

Page 2
which with the giving of notice or the passageiwfet or both would constitute such a default orrmksdi event of default.
Your acknowledgement of this letter shall conséitatceptance of the foregoing terms and conditions.
Sincerely,

WELLS FARGO BANK
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By: Kenneth Juni

Kenneth Juni Relationship Manager

Acknowledged and accepted 12-13-98

INTEVAC, INC.

By: Charles Eddy

Title: CFO



EXHIBIT 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
. Lotus Technologies, Inc. -- California
. Intevac Foreign Sales Corporation -- Barbados
. Intevac Asia Private Limited -- Singapore
. Intevac GmbH -- Germany
. Intevac Malaysia Sdn Bhd -- Malaysia

. RPC Technologies, In-- California



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF ERNST AND YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 33-99638;35801 and 333-65421) pertaining
to the 1995 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan amdethployee Stock Purchase Plan and in the Registr&tatement (Form S-3 No. 333-

24275) of Intevac, Inc. of our report dated Jand&ry1999, with respect to the consolidated finalnsiatements and schedule of Intevac, Inc.
included in the Annual Report (Form 10-K) for themy ended December 31, 1998.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP
San Jose, California

March 11, 1999



ARTICLE 5

THIS SCHEDULE CONTAINS SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION EXTRACTED FROM THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE
SHEET AT DECEMBER 31, 1998 AND THE CONSOLIDATED STEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
1998 AND IS QUALIFIED IN ITS ENTIRETY BY REFERENCEO SUCH FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

MULTIPLIER: 1,000

PERIOD TYPE 12 MOS
FISCAL YEAR END DEC 31 199
PERIOD START JAN 01 199
PERIOD END DEC 31 199
CASH 3,991
SECURITIES 56,92t
RECEIVABLES 11,79¢
ALLOWANCES 1,62¢
INVENTORY 22,10z
CURRENT ASSET¢ 100,85:
PP&E 24,00¢
DEPRECIATION 10,87¢
TOTAL ASSETS 122,97t
CURRENT LIABILITIES 23,07¢
BONDS 59,43¢
PREFERRED MANDATORY 0
PREFERREL 0
COMMON 17,915
OTHER SE 22,51¢
TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 122,97t
SALES 95,97t
TOTAL REVENUES 95,97¢
CGS 71,715
TOTAL COSTS 71,715
OTHER EXPENSES 24,46¢
LOSS PROVISION 24¢
INTEREST EXPENSE 4,187
INCOME PRETAX (1,463
INCOME TAX (882
INCOME CONTINUING (581,
DISCONTINUED 1,00t
EXTRAORDINARY 0
CHANGES 0
NET INCOME 424
EPS PRIMARY 0.04
EPS DILUTED 0.0<
End of Filing
Powerad By I:IH'J‘.['{E. -
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